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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES

NEERMREZERH

Key Dates

Annual Results Announcement 22 June 2021

Final Dividend HKS$0.012 per share

- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 27 August 2021
(before 4:30 p.m.)

- Book Close Dates 30-31 August 2021

(both days inclusive)

- Record Date 31 August 2021
- Payment Date 14 September 2021
Annual General Meeting 19 August 2021
- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 13 August 2021

(before 4:30 p.m.)

Corporate Communications

This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed
form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (https://www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company. In order to protect the environment, the
Company highly recommends the shareholders to receive
electronic copy of this Annual Report. Shareholders may
have the right to change their choice of receipt of our future
Corporate Communications at any time by reasonable notice
in writing to the Company or the Company’ s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or
by email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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RESULTS SUMMARY
FEBE

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Emperor HEZ%£E (BE)AR QG ([ARQA))z2ES
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents € ([EE=2g |k [E=)IREARAIREKEB
the audited consolidated results of the Company and its A& (% [ANEE])& =2021F3A318 ILF
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the E ([RFEE|) 2 EBRGEEEE-

year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year”).

For the year ended 31 March

BZE3A31BLFE
2021 2020
HK$’ 000 HKS’ 000
F#ET FHT
Total revenue
4m 7 A 1,317,082 2,365,382
- Rentalincome
_FASURA 898,724 1,007,719
- Property sales
iy 82,208 145,250
- Hotel and hotel related operations
Gross profit
EF 647,342 1,506,653
Fair-value loss on investment properties
RANEA A BERHE (1,210,598)  (4,129,522)
Loss attributable to the owners of the Company
AATEE \FEISEE (767,448) (3,644,359)
Basic loss per share — wr—
SREAE HK$(0.21)#5t  HKS$(0.99)# 7T

Final dividend per share — r—
SRR E HK$0.0127#5t  HKS$0.035% 7T

Total dividends per share — -
SRR aLE HK$0.024# 57t~ HKS0.07E 7T

Emperor International Holdings Limited EE2&£E (HR)ERAE 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WD

RESULTS

The Group’s total revenue decreased to HKS$1,317.1 million
(2020: HKS$2,365.4 million) during the Year. Rental income
decreased to HKS$898.7 million (2020: HK$1,007.7 million),
representing 68.2% (2020: 42.6%) of total revenue. The
decrease was mainly attributable to softened office leasing
demand amid a sluggish economy, as well as rental relief
measures that were implemented.

Revenue from the sales of property development was HKS$82.2
million (2020: HK$145.3 million), which was contributed by
the sales income from Peak Castle, accounted for 6.2% (2020:
6.1%) of the total revenue. Contracted sales of approximately
HKS$357.9 million from Central 8 were achieved during the
Year, and will be recognised in the next financial year.

With the tourism industry still adversely affected by the
Covid-19 pandemic, revenue from the hospitality segment
declined to HK$336.2 million (2020: HKS1,212.4 million), which
accounted for 25.5% (2020: 51.3%) of the total revenue.

Gross profit decreased to HK$647.3 million (2020: HKS$1,506.7
million). With a significant decrease in the revaluation loss
of the Group’s investment properties to HKS$1,210.6 million
(2020: HKS4,129.5 million), loss for the Year attributable to the
owners of the Company decreased to HK$767.4 million (2020:
HKS$3,644.4 million). Basic loss per share was HK$0.21 (2020:
HKS$0.99). The Board recommended a payment of a final
dividend of HKS$0.012 (2020: HKS0.035) per share. Together
with the interim dividend of HK$0.012 (2020: HKS$0.035) per
share, the total dividends for the Year are HK$0.024 (2020:
HKS$0.070) per share.

E 4

RAFE  NEBREUW A TEZE1,317,100,000

77T (20204 : 2,365,400,000/%8 7T ) ° 25 W AR

> 2898,700, OOO/% 7t (20204 : 1,007,700,000/%

TE) R KA UL A B968.2% (20204F : 42.6% ) ° %R
VIFBERHRELBET=RNERT #HAEH

Eﬁxﬁ@&amﬂ%ﬁ%EMO

) 5 %% 35 B WA /382,200,0007% 7T (20204
145,300,000/ 7T ) - E i H/FHIHE WA TR
158 A#96.2% (20205 : 6.1% ) - R ANFE
F 1L ) 59 B IR A 4 3H & F#)357,900,0008 7T -
W AF TN — B BF R R
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AR 75 2> 50 &9 g AR £ 5336,200,0005% 7T (2020
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N E E R A £767,400,0005% 7T (20204 :
3,644,400,000/% 7T ) ° tﬂxﬁmﬁiﬁ 18 A0. 21;%7_5
(2020¢ 0.99%8 L)  EEEEZ KRR

& %0.0127% 7T (20204 : 0.035,%5 JT) 38 [ ﬁﬁ
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWED T

MARKET REVIEW

The Covid-19 pandemic was a catastrophe for the global
economy. National lockdown and travel restrictions were
enforced in many countries throughout the Year, seriously
disrupting economic and trading activities. On the other hand,
China has substantially contained the pandemic, and the
Chinese government has been relaxing the travel restrictions
within the Greater Bay Area, which was beneficial to the
economic recovery of Greater Bay Area cities.

Domestically, the office leasing market has stagnated as some
corporations are downsizing while others are retreating from
the Hong Kong market. In respect of retail spaces, market
sentiment started to improve in the second half of the Year,
and hence retail leasing demand. Nonetheless, a full recovery
is yet to be achieved.

As for the property development market, home buyers’ confidence
began to pick up as the pandemic in Hong Kong started to
stabilise. With a low interest rate environment and relatively
resilient market demand, property developers have been
gradually resuming sales launches.

1 o ) ey
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group principally engaged in property
investment, property development and hospitality, owning
properties with a total area of approximately 6 million square
feet in Greater China and overseas.

Rental Income

The Group’ s investment properties portfolio primarily focuses
on commercial buildings and quality street-level retail spaces
in prominent locations, with an aggregate gross floor area
of approximately 4,500,000 square feet. In recent years, the
Group has strived to further develop beyond its origins,
notably by expanding its coverage from Greater China to
the United Kingdom, enabling it to possess a geographically
balanced property portfolio. By so doing, the Group can
diversify its rental income streams and minimise impacts due
to market volatility.

Existing Portfolio

- Hong Kong
Hong Kong accounted for more than 50% of the Group’s
total gross floor area of investment properties currently
for lease. As at 31 March 2021, the occupancy rate of the
Group’ s investment properties in Hong Kong was around
90%.

The Group owns numerous premium office, commercial and
industrial complexes which mainly include Emperor Group
Centre and China Huarong Tower in Wan Chai; Emperor
Commercial Centre in Central; CentreHollywood in Sheung
Wan; Toppy Tower in Kwai Chung; No. 4 Kin Fat Lane and
Bhotai Industrial Building & Shan Ling Industrial Building
in Tuen Mun; and commercial and car park complexes at
Sui Wo Court in Sha Tin.

The Group also generated rental income from numerous
retail spaces in popular shopping districts. Key investment
properties include Nos. 8, 20, 22-24 and 50-56 Russell
Street, No. 76 Percival Street and Nos. 474-476, 478-
484, 507, 523 Lockhart Road in Causeway Bay; Nos.
81, 83 Nathan Road, Nos. 35-37 Haiphong Road and
Nos. 25-29 Hankow Road in Tsim Sha Tsui; the pulse
in Repulse Bay; retail shops of Fairview Height at Mid-
levels, Fitfort Shopping Arcade in North Point, and retail
shops at Level 3, New Town Commercial Arcade in
Tuen Mun.

Emperor International Holdings Limited EEZ&£E (HFE) BRAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WA

The Group continued making progress with its
revitalisation projects. Town planning approvals have
been obtained for revitalisation of Toppy Tower and
Bhotai Industrial Building & Shan Ling Industrial
Building, which allow relaxation of the maximum
permissible non-domestic plot ratio by up to 20%,
pursuant to the government’ s revitalisation scheme.

During the Year, the Group disposed of several properties,
which were primarily retail complexes and industrial
building units located out of the prime shopping and
business areas, at a consideration of HK$889.5 million.
This allowed the Group to unlock the asset value by
disposal of non-core assets, and save additional reserves
for seizing future investment opportunities. For the
details of this disposal, please refer to note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent to the Year, New Media Tower was disposed
of at an agreed value of HK$508.0 million, which will
further enhance the Group’ s financial position.

Mainland China

Located in Chang’ an Avenue East, Beijing, Emperor Group
Centre Beijing is a 28-storey (excluding three-storey
basement with parking facilities) Grade-A office tower
and premier shopping mall with premium cinema,
encompassing a gross floor area of approximately 1,062,000
square feet. It becomes an important part of Yong’ anli
CBD and marked a major milestone for the Group in
developing upscale significant commercial projects in
mainland China. It has therefore attracted reputable office
tenants, multiple international superior jewellery, watch,
and high-quality lifestyle product brands, as well as special
trendy food and beverage tenants from different countries.
Emperor Group Centre Beijing gives full play to advanced
structural systems, intelligent technology, and energy
saving technology to create a new commercial image with
a balance between environment and urban economic
development.

Macau

With a gross floor area of approximately 30,000 square
feet, Emperor Nam Van Centre is a multi-storey premium
retail complex on the Macau Peninsula. Located at the
centre of Macau Peninsula’ s gaming district, Emperor
Nam Van Centre has become a prime shopping location
with a blend of shopping and lifestyle offerings, featuring
a department store, sportswear outlet and jewellery store.
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London

The Group owns a 7-storey (including basement)
retail and office complex at Nos. 181-183 as well as
Ampersand Building at Nos. 111-125 on Oxford Street,
London. Ampersand Building is an 8-storey (including
basement) composite building comprising retail spaces,
office premises and apartments under lease with a gross
floor area of approximately 113,000 square feet (for retail
and office portions only). Located in the prime retail and
vibrant SOHO office area of London’ s West End, it is also
in close proximity to the Tottenham Court Road Crossrail
development, thereby enjoying significant pedestrian
traffic and excellent accessibility.

The redevelopment project at No. 27 Oxford Street
was completed in early 2021. Occupying a prominent
commercial and shopping location in London that is
popular with international visitors, the site has been
redeveloped into a 9-storey retail and office building
with a gross floor area of approximately 19,000 square
feet. The project entailed restoring the building’ s historic
street-front facades.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WD
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WA

Future Projects

- Hong Kong

The Group continually strives to enhance the value and
maximise the potential rental income of its premises by
undertaking various redevelopment and revitalisation
programmes. The two adjacent buildings at Nos. 75-85
Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, were successfully transformed
into a Grade-A office building with a gross floor area
of approximately 96,000 square feet. The project is
scheduled for completion in 2021 and is now in the
process of pre-leasing. The redevelopment will create a
vibrant building in the heart of Wan Chai - one of the core
commercial districts on Hong Kong Island - and presents
significant value-creation opportunities to the Group.

With a gross floor area of approximately 179,000 square
feet, the 14-storey industrial building located at No. 4 Kin
Fat Lane, Tuen Mun, was successfully transformed into
a commercial building through a wholesale conversion
scheme, and will support diverse functions such as food
and beverage, retail and offices. It is now recruiting
tenants.

- Mainland China

Located in Yuyuan, Huangpu District, Shanghai, Emperor
Star City will be developed into a shopping arcade and
hotel or serviced apartment complex, at a prime site
adjacent to the Shanghai M10 subway route. Foundation
and basement excavation work for the development
has been completed. With an expected gross floor area
of approximately 1,300,000 square feet, the complex
will include a multi-storey shopping arcade as its major
component.

Property Sales

The Group pursues a strategy of providing quality residential
properties including luxury composite buildings in popular
urban areas, and low-rise detached houses in unique spots,
with convenient access to transportation networks. A steady
development pipeline has been established, which will
provide medium-term contributions to the sale of residential
units, for earnings visibility.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WD

Projects launched for sale

Located at No. 8 Mosque Street, Mid-Levels, Central 8 is a
29-storey (including lower ground floor) boutique residential
tower with a gross floor area of approximately 34,000 square
feet, offering 99 units with studio to 2-bedroom layouts.
Adjacent to SOHO area and Lan Kwai Fong, it is in close
proximity to the Central-Mid-Levels Escalator, with convenient
access to the central business district. Occupation permit
has been obtained, and pre-sale was launched during the
Year. As at 31 March 2021, the sales contracts of 45 units were
committed, with an average selling price of over HK$30,000
per square feet.

Peak Castle is a luxurious low-rise development of 14
detached and semi-detached houses in Siu Lam, Tuen Mun.
Subsequent to the Year, all houses were sold.

Projects to be launched soon

Seaside Castle is a prime residential project located at No.
9 Ching Lai Road, Tai Lam, Tuen Mun which comprises 8
luxurious detached houses with sea views, encompassing a
gross floor area of approximately 29,000 square feet. With
close proximity to new transportation infrastructure such as
Hong Kong-Shenzhen Western Corridor and the Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macau Bridge, the project has convenient access to the
cities in the Greater Bay Area. It is also close to the prestigious
Harrow International School. The project has been completed
during the Year and launched to the market subsequent to the
Year.
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The project located at No. 15 Shouson Hill Road West,
Southern District, Hong Kong Island is a signature luxury
residential project which is 40% owned by the Group, boasting
a gross floor area of approximately 88,000 square feet. In
proximity to Aberdeen Tunnel and a network of prestigious
schools, the site has been developed into 15 low-density
luxury villas, complemented by comprehensive auxiliary
facilities. The project has been completed during the Year and
will soon be launched to the market.

Other projects under development

With the successful extension of MTR to Kennedy Town, it
becomes a popular urban area in Hong Kong Island. The
site at Nos. 24-26A, Davis Street, Kennedy Town, will be
redeveloped into a 22-storey residential and retail tower. It is
planned to be completed in 2022 and the pre-sale is expected
to be launched in the same year.

The site at Nos. 20-26 Old Bailey Street & No.11 Chancery
Lane, Central, is planned for redevelopment into a 26-storey
boutique luxury residential tower. Adjacent to SOHO area and
Lan Kwai Fong, it is in close proximity to Central-Mid-Levels
Escalator, with convenient access to the central business
district. The redevelopment is planned to be completed in
2023.

No. 1 Wang Tak Street, Happy Valley, a site previously
occupied by Emperor (Happy Valley) Hotel, will be
redeveloped into a 27-storey residential tower with a gross
floor area of approximately 58,000 square feet. Happy Valley is
a traditional luxury residential location on Hong Kong Island,
with easy access to major shopping and business districts
such as Causeway Bay and Wan Chai, and in close proximity
to major facilities such as the Hong Kong Jockey Club,
Hong Kong Sanatorium & Hospital and Hong Kong Stadium.
Demolition work has completed and the project is planned to
be completed in 2023.

The existing building at Nos. 24-30 Bonham Road, Mid-
levels, will be demolished and redeveloped into a 27-storey
residential complex with a gross floor area of approximately
104,000 square feet. Close to railway network, it is just 5
minutes walk away from the Sai Ying Pun MTR station. The
redevelopment is planned to be completed in 2023.

The existing buildings at Nos. 74-80 Old Main Street
Aberdeen, Aberdeen, will be demolished and redeveloped
into a 23-storey residential and retail building with a gross
floor area of approximately 38,000 square feet. Located in
Aberdeen town centre, it is conveniently accessed by a variety
of public transport. The redevelopment is planned to be
completed in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The redevelopment project at No. 127 Caine Road, Mid-levels,
is planned to be redeveloped into a 23-storey residential and
retail tower with a gross floor area of approximately 25,000
square feet. It is around 3 minutes and 5 minutes walk from
PMQ and SOHO area, respectively, and has convenient access
to several leisure spots and multinational restaurants in Mid-
levels. The redevelopment is planned to be completed after
2024.

Hotel and Hotel Related Operations — Special Dividend

and Event Subsequent to the Year

Subsequent to the Year, 1 hotel and 2 serviced apartments
in Hong Kong - The Emperor Hotel, The Unit Serviced
Apartments and MORI MORI Serviced Apartments -
were disposed of to Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited
(“Emperor E Hotel”; Stock code: 296), a subsidiary of the
Group, at a consideration of HK$2,082.5 million. As a result,
the entire hospitality business segment is directly owned by
Emperor E Hotel, while the relevant recurrent income will
continue to be consolidated to the Group.
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By so doing, the Group can capitalise on its strengthened
financial position to enhance its investment properties
portfolio and expand its land bank for property development
in the future.

On 25 May 2021, the Board resolved to declare the payment
of a special dividend of HKS$0.01 per share, totalling
approximately HK$36.8 million, to the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) which shall be made on 25 June
2021. Details of the special dividend were disclosed in the
Company’ s announcement dated 25 May 2021.

OUTLOOK

Supported by the rollout of vaccination programmes in the
second half of the Year, the pandemic in certain countries
started to moderate. It is believed that the macro economy
will gradually recover from the economic slump, as various
governments are striving to rebuild their economies by several
means such as fiscal support and creating job opportunities,
while central banks have been injecting liquidity into markets
to maintain market stability. The proposed vaccination
passports, border re-opening and travel bubbles are some
other positive factors that will contribute to the recovery.

Closer to the end of the Year, employees of most corporations
in Hong Kong have resumed working from the office, restoring
confidence in the office leasing market. At the same time,
citizens’ lives largely returned to normal - shopping activities
resumed and queues at restaurants are again seen, providing
a favourable operating environment to retailers and restaurant
operators, in turn, to landlords.

Subsequent to the Year, developers have been pushing ahead
with sales launches, which are well received by home buyers
and investors. Given the limited land supply, underlying
demand for residential units, and a low interest rate
environment, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about
the local residential property market outlook in the long term.
The Group has a solid pipeline in development properties
for the coming few years, and will launch the project sales at
opportune times. The Group will also continue to participate
in commercial development opportunities, aiming to maintain
a more balanced investment property portfolio.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s net asset value and net
asset value per share amounted to HK$27,069.5 million (2020:
HK$27,200.2 million) and HKS$7.36 (2020: HKS7.40) per share,
respectively.

The Group had cash, bank balances and bank deposits
amounted to HKS$4,133.9 million (2020: HKS$3,924.1 million)
as at 31 March 2021. The total external borrowings (excluding
payables) was approximately HKS$27,284.4 million (2020:
HKS$27,087.3 million), and the Group’s net gearing ratio
(measured by net debts as a percentage to its total asset
value) was 38.4% (2020: 38.4%).

To finance its operations, the Group utilises cash flow
generated from business operations and maintains multiple
channels of funding sources including bank borrowings
and bond issuances. During the Year, the Company issued
unsecured notes amounting to US$250.0 million with a
coupon interest rate of 4.5% and a tenor of three years
due September 2023. As of 31 March 2021, the outstanding
principal of the medium-term notes issued by the Group was
HK$4,905.4 million, which were denominated in Hong Kong
dollar and United States dollar at fixed rates ranging from
3.15% to 5.0% per annum.

Assets Pledged

As at 31 March 2021, assets with carrying value of HK$45,617.8
million (2020: HK$44,534.8 million) were pledged as security
for banking facilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’ s number of employees was
1,209 (2020: 1,415). Total staff costs including Director’s
remuneration and the other staff costs for the Year were
HK$488.8 million (2020: 681.9 million). Each employee’s
remuneration was determined in accordance with individual’ s
responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance, as well as market pay levels. Staff benefits
include medical and life insurance, retirement benefits and
other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which will be
set out in the section headed “Share Options” of this annual
report.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Non-Executive Director (Chairperson)

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 65, the Chairperson of the
Company. She joined the Company in June 1999. Ms. Luk is
also the non-executive director and chairperson of Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E
Hotel”), a subsidiary of the Company. She is the mother of Mr.
Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, the Executive Director of the
Company. Ms. Luk worked in the banking industry for almost
10 years. She graduated from The University of Toronto with a
Bachelor’ s Degree in Commerce.

Executive Directors and Managing Directors
WONG CHI FAI, aged 65, the Managing Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong joined the Company in 1991 and has
been responsible for the Group’ s strategic planning, business
growth and development and overseeing the financial
management of the Group. He is also the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company as well as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Currently, he is also a director of
Emperor E Hotel, Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock
Code: 887)(“Emperor W&J’), Emperor Culture Group Limited
(Stock Code: 491)(“Emperor Culture”) and Ulferts International
Limited (Stock Code: 1711)(“Ulferts”), all being listed members
under Emperor Group. Having over 30 years of finance and
management experience, Mr. Wong has diversified experience
in different businesses ranging from property investment and
development to manufacturing, hotel and hospitality, retailing
of watch and jewellery, cinema development and operation,
wholesaling and retailing of furniture, financial and securities
services, artiste management, entertainment production and
investment as well as media and publication. Mr. Wong is
a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.
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FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name: Fan Man Seung),
aged 58, the Managing Director of the Company. Ms. Fan
joined the Company in 1990 and has been responsible for the
Group’ s strategic planning, business growth and development
as well as overseeing different functions within the Group.
Ms. Fan is also the Chairperson of the Corporate Governance
Committee and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Currently, Ms. Fan is also a director of Emperor E
Hotel, Emperor W&J, Emperor Culture and Ulferts. Having
over 32 years of corporate management experience, she
possesses diversified experience in different businesses
ranging from property investment and development to
hotel and hospitality, retailing of watch and jewellery,
cinema development and operation, wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management, entertainment production and investment as
well as media and publication. She is a lawyer by profession in
Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and holds a Master’ s
Degree in Business Administration.

Executive Directors

CHEUNG PING KEUNG, aged 65, joined the Company in 2005
and was appointed as Executive Director of the Company in
February 2007. He is a member of the Executive Committee
and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Cheung is currently responsible for overseeing the Group’s
property investment, development and management
businesses. During the period from 1997 to 2005, Mr. Cheung
was an executive director of Henderson Investment Limited
(Stock Code: 97). He has over 40 years of experience in
professional general practice surveying as well as property
development and marketing in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland
China and Canada. He graduated from University of London
with a Bachelor’s Degree (Hons) in Arts. He is a Chartered
Valuation Surveyor and a Fellow of both the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors.
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YEUNG CHING LOONG, ALEXANDER, aged 35, joined the
Group in 2009 and was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in May 2018. He is a member of the Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yeung has been involving in the management of the
overall business of the Group. Over the past decade, he
has undertaken responsibility in evaluating new business
opportunities and strategic planning of the Group and actively
participated in various projects including a diverse portfolio
of residential projects, industrial and commercial buildings,
shopping malls, street level retail premises, hotels as well
as co-working space. With a comprehensive expertise in real
estate-related fields, Mr. Yeung has introduced a number of
innovative ideas to the business, and has taken advantage of
the opportunities to actively expand the property portfolio
in Greater China and overseas, including but not limited to
mega commercial complex in China’ s capital city, the largest
beach-front lifestyle shopping complex in Hong Kong, single-
block and luxury residential property development, revitalized
commercial complex, and transitional housing project, etc.
Mr. Yeung has also actively developed smart facility solutions
for the Group’ s projects, combining cutting-edge trends and
innovative technologies to assist the Group in expanding
the business market. Apart from the above property-related
experience, Mr. Yeung has been involving in the management
of other business segments under the Emperor Group,
namely financial and securities services, retailing of watch &
jewellery, entertainment production and investment, artiste
management, film investment and distribution, cinema
development and operation, media and publication, furniture
and furnishing, etc.

Mr. Yeung acts as a board member of the Emperor Foundation,
promoting voluntary work across the Emperor Group, and
he is committed to providing charitable sponsorship and
supports in the areas of youth and child development, elderly
care, education, culture and environmental protection.
Mr. Yeung is a member of the 13th Political Consultative
Conference of Beijing City and was a member of the 5th
Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province. He is particularly concerned about youth affairs and
has participated extensively in public services in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, including Committee Member of
All-China Youth Federation; Committee Member of Beijing
Youth Federation; Standing Committee Member of Tianjin
Youth Federation; Vice Chairman of Hong Kong United Youth
Association; Chairman of Brightway Charitable Foundation,
etc. Mr. Yeung cares for the society and the community, and
his philanthropic footprint extends to Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China.
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Mr. Yeung is also an executive director of Emperor Culture,
also a listed member under Emperor Group. He is the son of
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon, being the Chairperson and a Non-
executive Director of the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

CHENG KA YU, aged 48, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2012. She
is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well
as a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. She has been admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1998 and is now a Partner of P.C.
Woo & Co., Solicitors. Ms. Cheng graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’ s Degree in Laws in 1995.

WONG TAK MING, GARY, aged 45, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2013. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well
as a member of the Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. He now runs a
professional accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over 20
years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting. Mr.
Wong was previously an independent non-executive director
of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 79), a
listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
until 26 May 2017. Mr. Wong is a certified public accountant
(practising), a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong.

CHAN HON PIU, aged 61, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2015. He
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan has been admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1991 and is now a partner of a law
firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Chan graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences.
He also obtained the Certificate of Education and a Master’ s
Degree in Laws from The University of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 51 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 71 and 72 of this annual report. The dividends paid
during the Year and proposed to be paid for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

An interim dividend of HKS$0.012 per share for the Year
(2019/2020: HK$0.035 per share), amounting to approximately
HKS$44.1 million (2019/2020: HKS$128.7 million), was paid to
the Shareholders during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.012 per share for the Year (2020: HKS0.035 per share),
amounting to approximately HK$44.1 million (2020: HK$128.7
million) to those shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on 31 August 2021 (Tuesday) subject to
the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on 19 August 2021 (Thursday)
(“2021 AGM”).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
an analysis of the likely future development of the Group’s
business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis from pages 6 to 16. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 39 to 63 and notes 42 and 43
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Save as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
there is no important event affecting the Company that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policy
and performance, key relationships with the Group’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2020/2021.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 218 of
this annual report.

Investment Properties

During the Year, the Group acquired investment properties at
a cost of approximately HK$193,368,000 and incurred costs
of approximately HK$339,220,000 on investment properties
under development.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. The decrease in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$1,210,598,000 has been
recognised to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of major properties of the Group as at 31 March
2021 is set out on pages 219 to 224 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment
During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of approximately HK$38,479,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out on pages 75 and 76 of this annual report.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 15 August 2013 (“Share Option Scheme”) as set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the Year
or subsisted at the end of the Year

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEE&£E (R BRAR
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Distributable Reserves of the Company

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
aggregate of (a) the difference between the consolidated
net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries and the nominal
value of the Company’ s shares issued pursuant to the group
re- organisation effective in December 1991; (b) the surplus
arising on reduction of share capital effective in March 2003;
and (c) the subsequent dividends paid and bonus issues by
way of capitalisation of contributed surplus.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, a company cannot
declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(i) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or the company is,
or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of the company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2021 represented the aggregate
of contributed surplus and retained profits amounting to
HK$3,377,626,000 (2020: HK$3,550,206,000).

Directors
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Managing Director)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary

Mr. Chan Hon Piu
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
as at the date of this report are set out from pages 17 to 20 of
this annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’ s
Bye-laws, Mr. Wong Chi Fai (“Mr. Bryan Wong”), Mr. Yeung
Ching Loong, Alexander (“Mr. Alex Yeung”) and Ms. Cheng
Ka Yu (“Ms. Elsa Cheng”) shall retire by rotation at the 2021
AGM. Mr. Bryan Wong and Mr. Alex Yeung, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election thereat whilst Ms. Elsa Cheng who
served as independent non-executive director of the Company
(“INED”) for over 9 years, being eligible but does not offer
herself for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2021 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group’ s business were entered into or
existed during the Year.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Company’ s Bye-laws and in the
directors and officers liability insurance maintained for the
Group in respect of potential liability and costs associated
with legal proceedings that may be brought against the
Directors and the directors of the Group respectively.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures
a clear link to business strategy and a close alignment
with the Shareholders’ interest and current market best
practice). Remuneration should be paid with reference to the
Board’ s corporate goals and objectives, the salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Executive and Non-executive Directors, internal equity
of employment conditions across the Group and applicability
of performance-based remuneration. The Directors’ fee
are paid in line with market practice. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEE&£E (R BRAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 &%k

RAREBHEZENSRERABZREFT
N AFERFEITEEL20E - EZFH A BENER
B BHAMFEL0 -

RIRAR R ) 2 EI2 A0 A 5287 (1) 15 M FH87(2) 6k -
asERE([EAE]) BRELE(THE
£ EBzmzt ([8zd]) K202 B3R
BEAGLHAESR BLEMGAEHTEE
RAFEENE EEERSE MOEERARREL
FRTESF([BUFATEFAIFZ2HBX
ITHEEREERBEEET

BERA201FRRBEFAS LBEREECE
FRAFBEITEAR-—FRALNEE CEER
{ERRSN) 2 RIE RIS A 4 o

EEAEHN

RAFERERN BRERE I LETINTFHEH
FAREBEEBAEMERNBLYEBNERE KT
BEENAL-

BAESFRRERX
REFEARBEAFRAML RESRAE
Bl H AT AL T B AR AT E A MEE BAT
R AR EE RSO E O 2E
X BIBN AR T 2 B2 A A R A S
CEERBRERASETRA-

B B R
E=CMeAREZeREFMEESL2R—
£ N BOCR (DA OR B2 56 7% SRS 75 75 Bl g
2 WEINERR  EaRITmEREER)
AEEHNEEEAMEE M H2EEFES
CEAERLEN A TFTUERARNOEFT
HITRIERTEZNRRBRAMBE - ~AEER
BB R G R ERBHBNFTM 2 EA
- BEZRE ARG TS TR M - A &
ERIALAIBEERS 2% -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWRE

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual’ s responsibility, competence and skills,
experience and performance as well as market pay level.
Remuneration packages includes, as the case may be, basic
salaries, Directors’ fees, housing allowances, contribution to
pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to the financial
performance of the Group and individual performance, ad hoc
rewards, share options and other competitive fringe benefits
such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments
of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the
Group are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in

Securities

At 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company (“EIHL
Securities Code”) were as follows:

(a) Long position interests in the Company
(i) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company (the “Shares”)

Capacity/
Name of Director Nature of interests
EEnR B EHE
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse
(“Ms. Semon Luk”) Bic (5 4 2=

e g2t ([RERE])
Mr. Alex Yeung
BRE

Beneficial Owner
BEolEA A

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
(“Ms. Vanessa Fan”)
et ([Brt])

Eligible beneficiary of
a private discretionary trust
IABIBEFRZEET

BEFMIIRIEEARE 7 8 LiE &Rk
RIA R T IGF K F MEEE - HBA S 848 (R
BRAME) ZAFH T EFEE FHERM B
Bt S UA S B R £R [ B 75 R 3R K% fEl A R 3R
B2 BBTEAL R 8 IERE R M AR
BENZBIEN (NBEEASRR) EF
RASEQRZESFMALZFHMFBHR LR
B BHRAM L0 -

EERFETRAEZHSER

R2021F3A31H EFRARAETETHAR
RARE REBH LB (F&LEFMAEEF
Bl (TREZ KRR RG] ) EXVER) 2 Betn - IR A
I REEBTRAARRIREZESF MAGEHD
EI2GEF < BRIt 2 B AR > X
REARBRAZEFTETES X ZNFEST
AN(TREFKRBSFT)ASTHEARE R
B3Pl 2 s RORR AR

(a) RARRIZ RS
() A2TEREEO.OLET X LER

(sl

Number of
Shares % of issued
interested voting Shares
BEREGZZ HeRTa
KRHEE EERB%
2,747,610,489 T4.71%

(Note)

(K1)
2,747,610,489 T4.71%

(Note)

‘XA (K1)
10,500,000 0.29%
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Note:

These Shares were held by Emperor International Group Holdings
Limited (“Emperor International Group Holdings”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”). AY
Holdings is held by First Trust Services GmbH (“First Trust”) in trust
for a private discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert
(“Dr. Albert Yeung”). Dr. Albert Yeung, as founder of the private
discretionary trust, had deemed interests in the said Shares held
by Emperor International Group Holdings. By virtue of being the
spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests in
the same Shares whereas Mr. Alex Yeung also had deemed interests
in the same Shares by being one of the eligible beneficiaries of such
private discretionary trust.

Hisz -

ZEROBEZEE (BB IERERAR ([HEE
SEERERDEE HABSKNEXZRER
ARG ENELERDZ2EHBRAA -BX
Ak B 2 4% I M First Trust Services GmbH ([First
Trust | ) ¥4 > MFirst TrustBHB KRB+ ([1518
TR ZAARBELEZZTA - BELIEATL
ARBEEIZEIA BRAGE EESEEREIE
BA#E Ll Rp RS -ERELLABELY
Bl BWARAEEERRGHOERS  MBLTER
BRANBEIZAERZIEZAZ — BWEHEA
WAEERRDE -

(ii) Debentures (i) EEE
Amount of
debentures
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests held
Exns B mtE FsEEREHE
Mr. Bryan Wong Interest of controlled corporation HK$2,000,000
\mAEA REZEHEE 2 s 2,000,000/ 7T

Long position interests in ordinary shares of
associated corporations

(b) RABHEEE 2 B MM 1T B 42

Number
of shares % of issued

Name of associated Capacity/ Interested  voting shares
Name of Director corporation Nature of interests FEE#RZ EE BT
Espns HBEE SR 2% F:3:3-1 BROBE BEREERD%
Ms. Semon Luk Emperor E Hotel Interest of spouse 851,352,845 70.38%
BEz+ HEREAE [ e

Emperor W&J - Ditto - 4,290,850,000 63.29%

REERKE - Al £-

Emperor Qulture - Ditto - 2,371,313,094 73.80%

HEXLEE -/ E-

Ulferts - Ditto - 600,000,000 75.00%

Bt - Al £-
Mr. Alex Yeung Emperor E Hotel Eligible beneficiary of 851,352,845 70.38%
BRE HEREHE a private discretionary trust

MARBERIZAERKEA

Emperor W&J - Ditto - 4,290,850,000 63.29%

HEFRIKE - Al £-

Emperor Culture - Ditto - 2,371,313,094 73.80%

REXLEE - A k-

Ulferts - Ditto - 600,000,000 75.00%

Bt - Al £-

og  EmperorInternational Holdings Limited ZX2%E (EIFR) BRAH
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Note:

Emperor E Hotel, Emperor W&J, Emperor Culture and Ulferts are
companies with their shares listed on the Stock Exchange. These
shares were ultimately owned by the respective private discretionary
trusts which are also founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. By virtue of being
the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests
in the same shares whereas Mr. Alex Yeung also had deemed
interests in the same shares by being one of the eligible beneficiaries
of such private discretionary trusts.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Share Options

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme.
Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
38 to the consolidated financial statements. No option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at
the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their spouse
or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

Hiiz -
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other

Persons’ Interests

So far as is known to any Director or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 March 2021, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have interests
and short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO (“DI Register”) were as follows:

Long position in the Shares

Name Capacity/Nature of interests

BB HE B EntE

AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation

15 B E AR REEGEE S 2

First Trust Trustee of a private discretionary trust

AABEEEZZHEA

Dr. Albert Yeung
HiEL FLABIBEFEZBINZA

These Shares were the same shares as those set out under Section
(a)(i) of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities”
above of which Ms. Semon Luk and Mr. Alex Yeung had deemed
interests.

Note:

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person or corporation (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed or
taken to have, any interests or short positions in any Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the DI Register.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
The Group is engaged principally in property investments,
property development and hospitality in Greater China and
overseas. As at 31 March 2021, the following Directors are
considered to have interested in other activities that compete
or are likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the said
core business of the Group, all within meaning of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”™):

i. Ms. Semon Luk, being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung as
founder of several private discretionary trusts, is deemed
to be interested in various companies under such private
discretionary trusts which are also engaging in property
investment and development. As Ms. Semon Luk is
not involved in the Company’ s day-to-day operations
and management, the Group is capable on its business
independently of and at arm’ s length from such disclosed
deemed competing business;

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEE&£E (R BRAR
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ii. Mr. Cheung Ping Keung had directorship role in several
companies under a private discretionary trust which
are also engaged in property investment business.
Given (a) the properties held by the Group are mainly
for commercial purpose while those held by companies
under such private discretionary trust are mainly for
residential purpose; and (b) he cannot control the board
of the Company and the companies under such private
discretionary trust, the Directors considered the Group’s
interests are adequately safeguarded;

iii. Mr. Alex Yeung, being one of the beneficiaries of a
private discretionary trust, is deemed to be interested
in various companies under such private discretionary
trust which are also engaged in property investment and
development. He also had shareholding and directorship
interests in private companies engaged in property
investment. Given (a) the properties held by the Group
are mainly for commercial purpose while those held
by companies of which Mr. Alex Yeung has interests are
mainly for residential purpose; and (b) he cannot control
the board of the Company and the companies under such
private discretionary trust; and (c) size and dominance of
the portfolio of the Group, the Directors considered the
Group’ s interests are adequately safeguarded; and

iv. Mr. Bryan Wong and his associates and Ms. Vanessa Fan
had shareholding and directorship interests in private
companies engaged in property investment business. In
light of the size and dominance of the portfolio of the
Group, such disclosed deemed competing business is
considered immaterial.

Confirmation of Independence of

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

Purchase, Sale, Redemption and Issuance of

the Company’ s Listed Securities

On 10 August 2020, the Company repurchased medium
term notes (Stock Code: 4326) due in September 2021 in an
aggregate principal amount of US$200,000 and subsequently
cancelled the same on 21 August 2020 leaving the remaining
principal amount of the notes at US$199,800,000.
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On 20 August 2020, the Company commenced the exchange
offer upon the terms and subject to the conditions in the
exchange offer memorandum dated 20 August 2020. Medium
term notes in a total of US$143,200,000 (representing about
71.67% of the outstanding US$199,800,000 notes (Stock Code:
4326)) had been converted into new notes. Such new notes
together with additional new notes in an aggregate principal
sum of US$250,000,000 bearing a coupon interest rate 4.5%
were issued on 3 September 2020 in a single series due
September 2023 and listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 40367) on 4 September 2020. Hence, the
remaining principal amount of the medium term notes (Stock
Code: 4326) due September 2021 was US$56,600,000.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold, redeemed or issued any of
the Company’ s listed securities during the Year.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’ s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements, Contracts and Connected

Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company and certain Directors had material interests, directly
or indirectly, in such transactions:

A. Continuing Connected Transaction - Master
Leasing Agreements

Date: 24 May 2018

Parties:
(1) Agreement 1: The Company and Emperor W&J

(2) Agreement 2: The Company and Emperor Capital
Group

(3) Agreement 3: The Company and Emperor Culture

(4) Agreement 4: The Company and Ulferts

(5) Agreement 5: The Company and AY Holdings

(6) Agreement 6: Emperor E Hotel and Emperor W&J
(the above counter-parties are collectively as “the

members of Emperor Group” and Agreement 1 to
Agreement 6 are collectively as “2018 MLAs”)
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Nature:

Each of 2018 MLAs sets out the framework of the terms
governing all existing and future tenancy/licensing
transaction(s) (“Tenancy Transactions”) regarding leasing
of certain office properties or other properties (including
retail shop, warehouses, carpark spaces, signage or
signboard space) to the members of Emperor Group
for the period from 24 May 2018 to 31 March 2021 with
aggregate tenancy annual caps being set for each of
the financial years ended 31 March 2019, 2020 and 2021
(“Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps”).

Pursuant to the 2018 MLAs, relevant members of the
Group and any member(s) of Emperor Group (as the
case may be) may from time to time enter into any
definitive leasing agreements in relation to any Tenancy
Transactions (“Definitive Leasing Agreement(s)”). The
terms of each of Definitive Leasing Agreements shall
be on normal commercial terms or on terms which are
no less favorable available to the Group than terms
offered by independent third parties. The terms and
rental shall be subject to arm’s length negotiation and
be determined based on the condition of the properties
and with reference to the then prevailing market rents on
property(ies) comparable in location, area and permitted
use.

Connected relationship and Directors’ interest:

The Company and the members of Emperor Group
were all indirectly controlled by private discretionary
trusts which are also founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. As
such, under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, each of
the members of the Emperor Group was a deemed
connected person of the Company. Ms. Semon Luk and
Mr. Alex Yeung had deemed interest in the 2018 MLAs by
virtue of being respectively an associate of the eligible
beneficiaries and an eligible beneficiary of the private
discretionary trusts controlling the members of Emperor
Group.

Announcement: 24 May 2018

Independent Shareholders’ approval: 9 August 2018
Completion:

9 August 2018, whereupon the Aggregate Tenancy Annual

Caps had replaced all the then annual caps previously
obtained by the Company for the Tenancy Transactions.
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Aggregate amounts:

During the Year, the aggregate amounts of the rental
income of the Tenancy Transactions from the relevant
members of the Emperor Group were as follows:-

Members of Emperor Group REEEKE
Emperor W&J REEERIKRE
Emperor Capital Group REBLFEE
Emperor Culture RECER
Ulferts Bk

AY Holdings 15 X B E F R
Remark:

With the upcoming expiration of the 2018 MLAs, the
Company entered into new master leasing agreements
with the respective members of Emperor Group on
3 December 2020 to regulate arrangements for Tenancy
Transactions between the parties for a successive term
of 3 years from 1 April 2021. As all conditions precedent
had been fulfilled on 2 February 2021, the new aggregate
tenancy annual caps took effect from 1 April 2021. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 3
December 2020 and 2 February 2021, and the circular
dated 24 December 2020 for details.

Continuing Connected Transaction -

Service agreement (“Service Agreement”)

(as supplemented by an addendum
(“Addendum?)) in relation to the operation of
the Grand Emperor Hotel

Date:
19 February 2010 (for the Service Agreement) and 4 May
2020 (for the Addendum)

Parties and connected relationship:

(1) Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Emperor E Hotel which is
an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

(2) Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A., (“SIM”), which is
principally engaged in gaming business in Macau and
is one of the six concessionaires/sub-concessionaries
licensed to carry on casino operations in Macau. SJM
has 19.99% equity interest in Luck United Holdings
Limited, an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor E Hotel, and is a connected person of the
Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules
by virtue of being a substantial shareholder of a
subsidiary of the Company.
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Term:

From 1 October 2009 to termination upon occurrence
of certain events, including the expiration of SUM’s
gambling license under the Gaming Concession Contract
on 31 March 2020 or any earlier termination thereof or
winding up or cessation of business of either party. As
supplemented by the Addendum, the term of the Service
Agreement is extended from 1 April 2020 to 26 June 2022

Nature:

The provision of services comprising management
services and promotion services by Tin Hou to SJM in
relation to the operation of the Grand Emperor Hotel
whereas Tin Hou together with the nominated junket
promoter (a fellow subsidiary of Tin Hou and wholly-
owned by Emperor E Hotel) shall be entitled to a share
of the gross win and gross loss in respect of the monthly
operating performance of the gaming area of the Grand
Emperor Hotel and bear all necessary operational
expenses in relation to the operation of the gaming area.

Announcement: 13 May 2020

Net receipt:
During the Year, the Group’s net receipt under the
services agreement amount to HK$36,356,000.

Continuing Connected Transaction - Master
Agreement (“Master Agreement”)

Date: 29 July 2020

Parties:
(1) The Company

(2) Ulferts

Nature:

Pursuant to the Master Agreement, Ulferts and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Ulferts Group”)
shall (i) sell furniture and accessories products; (ii)
furniture coupons; and (iii) provide furniture procurement
consultancy services and such other types of ancillary
services to members of the Group for projects and
investments or for own consumption in the ordinary
course of business of the Group, commencing from
29 July 2020 up to and including 31 March 2023.
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Connected relationship and Directors’ interest:

The Company and Ulferts were indirectly controlled by
the respective private discretionary trusts which are both
founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. As such, under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules, Ulferts is a deemed connected person
of the Company. Ms. Semon Luk and Mr. Alex Yeung had
deemed interest in the transaction by virtue of being
respectively an associate of the eligible beneficiaries and
an eligible beneficiary of the relevant private discretionary
trust controlling Ulferts.

Announcement: 29 July 2020

Aggregate amount:
During the Year, the amount of HK$7,258,000 was paid to
Ulferts Group for the purchase of furniture.

Discloseable and Connected Transaction -
Disposal of Entire Equity Interest in Oriental
Peak Limited

Date: 27 November 2020

Parties:

(1) Emperor Property Investment Limited (“Emperor
Property”), a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

(2) New Global Developments Limited (“New
Global”), which is indirectly controlled by a private
discretionary trust as set up by Dr. Albert Yeung

Nature:

Emperor Property entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with New Global, pursuant to which Emperor
Property conditionally agreed to sell and New Global
conditionally agreed to acquire (a) the entire equity
interest of Oriental Peak Limited (“Oriental Peak”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company which
holds certain properties located at (i) Upton, No. 180
Connaught Road West, Hong Kong; (ii) The Prince Place,
No0.398 Prince Edward Road West, Kowloon; (iii) The
Java, No. 98 Java Road, Hong Kong; (iv) 18 Upper East,
No. 18 Shing On Street, Hong Kong; (v) Castle Peak Road,
Yuen Long, New Territories, Hong Kong; and (vi) Hong
Kong Industrial Building, Nos.444-452 Des Voeux Road
West, Hong Kong, and (b) the entire amount of the loan
due and payable by Oriental Peak to Emperor Property
as at completion of the disposal at the consideration of
approximately HK$887.6 million (subject to adjustments),
subject to the terms and conditions set out in the said
agreement (the “Disposal”).
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Connected relationship and Directors’ interest:

The Company and New Global were indirectly controlled
by respective private discretionary trusts which are both
founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. As such, under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, New Global is a deemed
connected person of the Company. Ms. Semon Luk and
Mr. Alex Yeung had deemed interest in the Disposal by
virtue of being respectively an associate of the eligible
beneficiaries and an eligible beneficiaries of the relevant
private discretionary trust controlling New Global.

Announcement: 27 November 2020
Independent Shareholders’ approval: 2 February 2021

Completion: 8 February 2021 at a consideration of
approximately HK$889,536,000

Major Transaction - Disposal of Entire Equity
Interest in Poly Keen International Limited
(“Poly Keen”)

Date: 16 March 2021

Parties:
(1) Emperor Hotel Group Limited (“Vendor”), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

(2) Emperor Hotel Investment Limited (“Purchaser”), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of Emperor E
Hotel

Nature:

The Purchaser entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the Vendor, in relation to the purchase
and sale of the entire equity interest of Poly Keen and the
shareholder’ s loan due from Poly Keen to the Vendor at
the consideration of approximately HKS$2,082.5 million
(subject to adjustments), subject to the terms and
conditions set out in the said agreement.

Director’ s interests:

Ms. Semon Luk and Mr. Alex Yeung were deemed to have
interest in the transaction by virtue of being an associate
of the eligible beneficiaries and an eligible beneficiary
respectively of the private discretionary trust which
ultimately owns effective interest in Emperor E Hotel as to
approximately 53%.

Announcement: 16 March 2021
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Circular: 30 April 2021
Shareholders’ approval: 24 May 2021

Completion: 28 May 2021 at a consideration of
approximately HK$2,048,832,000

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save as “Rental income from related companies” (under
the 2018 MLAs) and “Purchase of furniture from a related
company” (under Master Agreement) in the amount of
HKS$118,290,000 and HKS7,258,000 respectively for the Year as
shown in note 49(a) to the consolidated financial statements
which constituted continuing connected transactions (“CCTs”)
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
all other transactions as shown in note 49 are connected
transactions exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above non-
exempt connected transactions.

Auditor’ s Letter on Non-Exempt Continuing

Connected Transactions

The Company’ s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’ s
non-exempt CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’ s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (the “Auditor’s Letter”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The auditor has issued unqualified conclusions in respect of
the non-exempt CCTs disclosed by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’ s
Letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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Confirmation of Independent Non-executive

Directors

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs have
reviewed the non-exempt CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and
have confirmed that these transactions have been entered
into by the Group:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of its business of the
Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance which was significant
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/her
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’ s five largest customers represented 35% of the
Group’ s total revenue. The largest customer accounted for
16% to the Group’ s total revenue.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers represented 27% of the Group’ s total purchases and
services received. The largest supplier accounted for 13% to
the Group’ s total purchases and services received.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owning more than 5% of the Company’ s issued share capital),
had a beneficial interest in the share capital of any of the
above major customers or suppliers of the Group.
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Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 39 to 63 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of the annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor
A resolution will be submitted to the 2021 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of
the Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For
the Year, the Company had fully complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

The Board

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for
the leadership, control and promotion of the success of the
Group in the interests of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions
and monitoring the financial and management performance
of the Group.

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2021, the Board comprised eight Directors, with
one Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the
Board, four Executive Directors and three INEDs. The Board
considers that this composition ensures a strong independent
element with a balance of power and influence between
individuals on the Board. The biographies of the Directors
are set out on pages 17 to 20 of this annual report under the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executives

Ms. Semon Luk has been appointed as the Chairperson
since 1999 and provides leadership for the Board. With the
support of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”), she ensures that all directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information and are properly briefed
on issues arising at board meeting. She is responsible for
ensuring that the Board works effectively and performs its
responsibilities. She holds meetings without the presence of
Executive Directors with the INEDs at least once a year.

Both Mr. Bryan Wong and Ms. Vanessa Fan have been
appointed as Managing Directors of the Company, and are
responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well recognized
experience and expertise in legal, accounting or auditing
field who contribute impartial view and make independent
judgment on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. Each
of them has been appointed for an initial term of three years
subject to early termination with written notice being served
by either party. The terms of the INEDs are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election provision under the
Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted
by the Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of
them to be independent by reference to the factors as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications of the
Company that disclose the names of Directors.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (comprising all the Executive Directors of the
Board) who has been delegated powers and authorities to
carry out the day-to-day management and operation of the
Group, formulate business policies and make decision on key
business issues. The Executive Committee shall have all power
and authorities of the Board except the following matters as
set out in a “Formal Schedule of matters reserved for and
delegated by the Board”:

e Determining the Group’ s objective and strategies;

e Approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

e Declaring or recommending payment of dividends or
other distributions;

e Approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

e Approving publication of the announcement for notifiable
transactions under Listing Rules;

* Approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-
exempt continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place from time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the Listing
Rules;

e Approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval as stipulated under the Listing Rules;
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e Approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

e Approving the establishment of Board committees;

e Approving policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, including but not limited
to risk management policy, remuneration policy and
corporate governance policy;

e Approving financial assistance to Directors;

e Ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’ s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions; and

e Approving such other matters or transactions as specified
by the Board or as thought fit by the Committee or as
required by all applicable laws, rules and regulations from
time to time.

Induction, Support and Professional

Development of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of equity and business interest in the
Group and such induction materials will also be provided to
newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment
as Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to enable Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses in order to assist them to perform their duties to the
Company.
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The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
During the Year, each Director has participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshops/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills and provided a record of
training to the Company:

Name of Directors
EEHE

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon

fE 2t

Mr. Wong Chi Fai

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
PER=I¢ GG

Mr. Cheung Ping Keung
SRR 58 P A

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander
BIRBESRE

Ms. Cheng Ka Yu

vt

Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary
=IBASLLE

Mr. Chan Hon Piu
RERSEE

Relationship between the Board Members

Ms. Semon Luk is the mother of Mr. Alex Yeung. Save as
disclosed above, there are no other relationship (including
financial, business, family or other materials/relevant
relations) among each other.

Directors’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of any legal action against the Directors.
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Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment SEF 7 HEFEBRMEREA

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Yearis AFEESHF R BERETIMT
set out below:

No. of meetings attended/held

HEER ETEERY
Corporate
Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance  Executive General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee  Committee  Committee Committee Meeting
LEER
Espsg Esg #nzEg FzEe REZEE ZEE® #HiTZEE RRAE
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon B et 6/6 22
Executive Directors Y7ES
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BEEBLAE 6/6 11 /7 22
(Note 1) (Hit1)
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa eEELL 6/6 1/1 /1 22
(Note 2) (Hi22)
Mr. Cheung Ping Keung RImREE 6/6 i 2/2
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, BRELE 6/6 1/1 77 2/2
Alexander
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu B=nzt 6/6 33 1/1 1/1 2/2
(Note 3) (H7i3)
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary HERLE 6/6 33 1/1 1/1 2/2
(Note 4) (Hiit4)
Mr. Chan Hon Piu REZLE 6/6 33 1/1 1/1 2/2
(Note 5) (H1i25)
Total number of meetings held % 7@ 2 £ 6 3 1 1 1 7 2
Notes: Hat -
1. Chairman of Executive Committee 1. HWITZEgER
2. Chairperson of Corporate Governance Committee 2. DEEBRZEEER
3. Chairperson of Nomination Committee 3. REZEEIXR
4. Chairman of Audit Committee 4, BEREEEIRE
5. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 5. FMZEEXRE

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs ~AARNFE - RBECEE AT Z SFAEXEAT
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance f{§' EREEBIIIENTESERNTESTRLY
with code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code. [EZ &%

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each EECERFISESTEBITALAAIBERTE
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company EF BEHARAFERN SEEHEHEEH
and is satisfied that each Director had been spending sufficient  EffIETTHE 2B E -

time in performing his/her responsibilities during the Year.
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Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent
to the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice
was given. Board papers and related materials which provide
appropriate, accurate, clear complete and reliable information
are generally sent to all Directors and relevant committee
members at least 3 days before each Board meeting and
Board Committee meeting (on other agreed period) to enable
the Directors to make informed decision.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within
reasonable time after the meetings are held. Originals of such
minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director will
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in which
he/she or any of his/her associates has a material interest
and he/she shall not be counted in the quorum present at
the Board meeting. INEDs who, and whose close associates,
have no material interest in the transaction are present at that
Board meeting.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee.
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All members of the Audit Committee and the majority
members of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all
the Board Committees are given to the respective members of
these Committees. Details of the Board Committees as at 31
March 2021 are set out below.

1. Executive Committee (set up on 22 October 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all Executive
Directors namely Mr. Bryan Wong (Chairman of the
Committee), Ms. Vanessa Fan, Mr. Donald Cheung and
Mr. Alex Yeung. The primary duties of the Executive
Committee are (a) formulating business policies and
making decision (including entering into transactions)
on matters relating to the management and day-to-
day operations of the Group; (b) making and reviewing
corporate/finance/treasury planning, investment and
operation strategy of the Group; (c) discussing and
approving any financial, borrowing, charging and
guarantee commitment to be made or on behalf of the
Group; (d) approving transactions, including discloseable
transactions, exempted connected transactions and
non-exempted continuing connected transactions took
place from time to time under the master agreement(s)
previously approved by the Board/Shareholders (as the
case may be) under the Listing Rules; and (e) having all
power and authorities of the Board except those matters
specifically reserved for the full Board as set out in the
“Formal Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated
by the Board” adopted by the Board from time to time.

2. Audit Committee (set up on 23 September 2004)
The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary (Chairman of the Committee),
Ms. Cheng Ka Yu and Mr. Chan Hon Piu.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independent and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee held
three meetings during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the management/finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2020 (“Previous Year”)
and the interim consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 September 2020;

ii. reviewed with the senior management and finance
personnel the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group during the
Previous Year;

iii. performed annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Previous
Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2020 annual general meeting
of the Company (“2020 AGM”); and

v. approved the audit plans for the Year, reviewed the
independence of the external auditor and approved
its engagement.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 July 2005)
The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chan Hon Piu (Chairman of the Committee)
and Ms. Cheng Ka Yu, both being INEDs, and Mr. Bryan
Wong, being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration
Committee is primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on (a) the Company’s
policy and structure of all remuneration of Directors
and senior management; (b) the remuneration of Non-
executive Directors; and (c) the specific remuneration
packages for individual Executive Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the Year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Remuneration
Committee held one meeting during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i.  reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation
to the Board for approval; and

ii. reviewed the remuneration structure/package of
the Executive Directors and senior management and
recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)
The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Cheng Ka Yu (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Mr. Wong Tak Ming, Gary, both being INEDs, and
Mr. Alex Yeung, being an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing
the Board Diversity Policy; (c) determining the policy
for the nomination of Directors (“Nomination Policy”)
and identifying potential candidates for directorship; (d)
assessing the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing the
time commitment of each Director in performing his/her
responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election
or re-designation of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board;

ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;
iii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;

and

iv. made recommendation to the Board on the
re-election of Directors at the 2020 AGM.
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Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy
aims to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest
sense in order to have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives to the business nature of
the Company. Selection of candidates on the Board is
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Nomination Committee will
also assess the merits and contribution of any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated
to be appointed as Director that will bring to the Board
against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board that would complement
the Company’ s corporate strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted the Nomination Policy of the
Group which aims at assisting the Nomination Committee
in identifying and nominating suitable candidates for
directorship based on the Board Diversity Policy and
sets out the nomination criteria and the nomination
procedures for (i) nominating new Director to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board; (ii) making recommendation
to Shareholders regarding any Director for election
or re-election of Director at general meeting; and (iii)
nomination by Shareholders on election of new Director.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on

28 March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC”) consists
of five members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of
the Committee), being the Managing Director, Mr. Wong
Tak Ming, Gary and Mr. Chan Hon Piu, both being INEDs,
a representative of company secretarial function and a
representative of finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CGC is
available on the website of the Company. The primary
duties of the CGC are (a) reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company
(“CG Policy”) and making recommendations to the
Board; (b) reviewing and monitoring the policies and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements of the Company; (c) developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable
to Directors and relevant employees of the Group on
dealings with the Company’s securities; (d) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and
(e) reviewing the Company’ s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this report. The CGC held one
meeting during the Year.
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A summary of the work performed by the CGC during the
Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation
to the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’ s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved
by the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board
for ensuring good information flow within the Board and
ensuring that the Board policy and procedures are followed.
She is responsible for advising the Board on general duties
and obligations of Directors and good corporate governance
issues, and has facilitated induction and professional
development of the Directors. She has day-to-day knowledge
of the Company’s affairs. During the Year, the Company
Secretary had duly complied with the training requirements
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Securities Transaction of Directors

The Company has adopted EIHL Securities Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions on no less
exacting terms than the required standards set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all of them
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
of dealings in the Model Code and EIHL Securities Code
throughout the Year.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board
with monthly updates on internal consolidated financial
statements which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects as at the reporting date.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a “going concern” basis
(with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary)
and showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for
the Year. The management had provided sufficient explanation
and information to the Board on the consolidated financial
statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before it for approval.
The auditor of the Company had made a statement about
their reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’ s
Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company
in achieving its business objectives. Internal control policies
and procedures within the Group are with the primary
objective of providing general guidance and recommendations
on a basic framework of risk management and internal control
systems (“Systems”).

A review has been conducted on (i) the internal control
measures and procedures covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls; and
(ii) risk management functions in its principal subsidiaries for
the Year as follows:

A. Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
Systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The key objectives of the Systems include:

safeguarding assets

- ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of
financial records and reports

- promoting adherence to policies, procedures,
regulations and laws

- promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations
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B. Internal Control
(1) Governance Control
The control structure of the Systems is set out as
follows:

The Board

responsible for the Systems and reviewing their
effectiveness;

oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with
the assistance of Audit Committee;

ensure maintenance of appropriate and effective
Systems;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant
risk that the Company is willing to take in
achieving the strategic objectives and formulate
the Group’ s risk management strategies.

Audit Committee

review and discuss the Systems with the
management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Systems. This discussion includes the
adequacy of resources, staff qualification and
experience, and the company’ s accounting and
financial reporting function; and

consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by internal or external
auditors and make recommendations to the
Board.

The management (includes heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

design, implement and monitor the Systems
properly and ensure the Systems are executed
effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks
in their day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

provide written confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.
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Internal Audit Department

carry out audit checking and evaluate the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems
in respect of all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance;

alert the management on the audit findings
or irregularities and advise them on the
implementation of necessary steps and actions
to enhance the internal controls of the Group;
and

report results of internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans to the Audit Committee and
the Board on regular basis.

(2) Operational Controls
The management is responsible for analyzing the
control environment, identified risks pertaining
thereto, and implemented various controls therein as
follows:

Approach taken: The management regularly
review and update the operational policies
and workflow procedures to identify areas for
improvement and/or amendments to cope with
changes as necessary. The scope and findings
of review on the risk management and internal
control will be reported to the Audit Committee
annually;

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines established to safeguard the assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; ensure
consistency of operational requirements; and
ensuring proper compliance with the applicable
laws, rules and regulations;

Management information system installed to
control the business activities and transactions
provide close tracking of various prescribed
inputs and outputs. It also provides audit
trails in the authorization system, under which
permissions and responsibility of authorization
are clearly identified and adequate records can
be maintained in the system;

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on
regular basis;

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts us promptly of any deviations;
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(3)

Vi.

Vil.

viii.

Safeguarding of assets: Insurance coverage
on assets is periodically reviewed by the
management for sufficient coverage, and
to ensure compliance with the terms and
conditions of the insurance policies. Surprise
physical count of cash chips and client deposits
held in casino and coupons for casino are
performed by internal Audit Department to
safeguard the assets;

Service quality control: Regular review on
operational systems of hotel and gaming
business segments to ensure the service quality;
and questionnaires are provided in different
outlets to welcome customers’ feedbacks for our
service improvement;

Control on leasing of properties: Policies and
checklists on control of rental revenue, lease
terms and conditions, appointment of property
management and leasing agency, asset security
and maintenance performance review are in
place for leasing of Group’ s premises; and

Control on acquisition of properties: Internal
procedures on the acquisition of properties are
in place.

Financial Controls

Policies, Systems and Procedures are in
place to ensure proper accounting records are
maintained which provide complete, accurate
and timely accounting and management
information;

Financial management report are provided
to director and senior management which give
a balanced and understandable assessment of
various businesses performance and financial
position in sufficient details;

Financial budget and forecasts are prepared
and reviewed regularly to ensure any actions can
be taken promptly to mitigate any changes in
conditions and market accordingly;

Annual audit by external auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements and individual companies’ financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the
Group’ s accounting policies and the applicable
laws and regulations; and

24 months cash flow rolling forecast is
regularly reviewed to monitor the cash flows
against budget plan.

(3)

Vi.

vil.

REEE: EEETHLEENR
LEERG T EETRE  WHER
& IR e BR O {5 e {4 » TR B
B AFIEREEABEZRE
EBELEFPEBLESEESE
TREHE UREEE:

B R B B T EA R 1
KRS M EE R LRER
BRE  RAES EPYE TR
B2 LR E = R R
R

vii. HEEMEZEE HEEAEE

iX.

mEmMS SHBESRA BERK
PR ZEMEEERBEER
BAERENMEERREN ZE
ERIERRRBRETE R

WEMEzEER EREREYE
B EBAZ Fr o

Bt IS EE 1=

iv.

V.

HEBEK RERERF  UERRF
FEERMEE A N R L8
St REEEM Z @5t

MEZENEREREREUEE
BHE UREFBHSREH
RA NSO R F B S0
R G

MmN ERENMBRERER
AT (R BB SREUERIHE 1 - [ T 4%
FRAR I Ko T 3 2 AT AA] 2

SN E AT FEFRIARE
e BHRER LA QR ZME
WRIBARBGFHER AEENE
AR MGERAR AR RS &

TEHEMERARSABRDE
B AR e RERBEEAENY
PLAETTERYE -

Emperor International Holdings Limited HZ%E (ER)ERAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 %k

53



54

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERKRE

(4) Compliance Controls
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure
of Inside Information to ensure, with the
assistance of an internal work team (if required),
that any material information which comes
to the knowledge of any one or more officers
should be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated, where appropriate, for the attention
of the Board. The Board shall make timely
decisions on disclosure, if necessary and take
appropriate measures to preserve confidentiality
of inside information until proper dissemination
of inside information;

Policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements which shall
be reviewed and monitored regularly by the
Corporate Governance Committee as delegated
by the Board in order to ensure the Company
is in compliance with all the applicable laws,
statutes, rules and regulations; and to keep up
on any legal developments;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected
transactions of the Company and ensure
proper compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations, the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy for the employees
of the Group to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.
Such arrangement will be reviewed by the
Audit Committee which ensures that proper
arrangement is in place for fair and independent
investigation of the matters; and

Anti-money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing Policy and Procedure establishes the
general framework for combating crime against
money laundering and financing of terrorism.
It provides guideline to prevent the Group’s
employees and clients/customers/suppliers/
vendors/contractors from being misused for
money laundering, terrorist financing or other
financial crime and has set out some indications
of potentially suspicious transactions/activities
for employees’ reference.
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Review of Internal Controls

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal
Audit Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on timely basis.

C. Risk Management

(1) Risk Management Process
The risk management process includes risk
identification, evaluation, management and control
measures.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor and
communicate risks associated with any activity,
function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. Risk are evaluated by the Board and
management based on (i) the severity of the impact
of the risk on the Group’s financial results; and (ii)
the frequency and probability that the risk will occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risk as follows:-

- Risk elimination - the management may
identify and implement certain changes or
controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

- Risk mitigation - the management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed to
reduce the likelihood and impact of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

- Risk control and monitoring - it involves
making decisions regarding which risks are
acceptable and how to address those that are
not; accidents and other situations involving loss
or near-loss will be investigated and properly
documented as part of the effort to manage
risks.

- Risk retention - the management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required and
the risk will continue to be monitored as part
of the risk management program to ensure the
level of risk does not increase to an unacceptable
level.
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(2) significant Risks and Strategies (2) TEEAM R KK

Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group and their
respective key strategies/control measures as set out
below:

Changes in social, economic and political
environment:

Changes and volatility in general economic
conditions caused by China-USA tensions, social
unrest, global economic slowdown, increase/
decrease in money supply and foreign exchange issue
would have impact on HK property market. Any more
adverse change in one of the above situations would
have significant impact to the Group’ s business.

e Stay alert to changes in economic and market
conditions in mainland China and Hong Kong or
global economy and adjust business strategic
plans to cope with these changes.

Occurrence of disaster events:

Any “Act of God”, natural disaster or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19 pandemic or
SARS, could adversely effect on the Group’ s business
and operations.

e Ensure all safety measures as required by
the Hong Kong SAR Government are fully
implemented;

e Contingency Management Committee is
established to take lead on all necessary
precautions and closely monitor the situations
and development;

* Implement business continuity plans which
include “Work from Home”, “Flexible Working
Hours” and “Split-team Arrangements”; and

e Create a natural disaster recovery plan which
includes recovery instructions, procedures and a
quick reference guide for departments to use in
order to respond and recover from the disasters.
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Investment strategy:

Acquisitions of land, investment and development
properties carry inherent risks related to significant
amount of money, missing targets, poor project
management, design, development and sales or
wrong investment decision would have significant
adverse impact on Group’ s overall business.

Regularly review investment and business
strategy against overall business environment;

Investment decisions are subject to a robust
risk and return evaluation by executives and
supervision by the Finance and Investment
Committee;

Potential projects are subject to an extensive
due diligence review by in-house specialists
and external advisers. Offers are only made for
projects with reasonable return or of strategic
value;

Ensure experienced managers are in place to
manage projects; and

Completed projects are subject to continual
monitoring and internal audit, with regular
performance reports to the Management.

Rental income sustainability:

Loss of major tenants or rental reduction either due
to changes in tenants’ own strategy, market situation
or competition among landlords would adversely
impact the revenue of the Group.

Closely monitor any adverse market conditions,
work with tenants to mitigate the impact;

Maintain a well-balanced and quality tenant mix;

Maintain high property marketability by timely
renovation;

Invite targeted tenants or anchor tenants to our
existing or new properties from time to time.
Custom-made arrangements are offered where
appropriate to cater to their specific needs;

Propose short term lease restructure for quality
tenants in order to help sustain their businesses;
and

Carry out pre-lease campaigns to replace the
undesirable tenants.
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Business/Portfolio concentration:

A significant portion of our Group revenues is
derived from Hong Kong. Unfavourable events in
the city could disrupt our overall business, lower our
revenues and impact the valuation of our assets.

e The Group has a diversified portfolio of
investment properties across Hong Kong,
Macau, Mainland cities and London, the United
Kingdom. The Group will keep sourcing quality
investment properties around the world; and

e The Group has expanded its investment property
portfolio to offices sector in recent years. This
enables the Group to mitigate the undesirable
impact on retail sector.

Property development risks:

Supply of land is subject to the change of land
policies in different markets. Acquisition of land in
Hong Kong, the PRC and other overseas markets may
be subject to various regulatory requirements and
restrictions and competition from other developers.
Future growth prospects of property development
business are therefore affected by the availability
and price levels of prime sites in Hong Kong, the PRC
and other overseas markets. Failure to manage cost
of construction labour and materials could adversely
affect the competitiveness of property development
business.

e Participate actively in the land auctions;

e Regularly update the Group’s long/medium/
short term strategic plans on property
development business;

e Implement well established policies in our
tendering policy and system;

e Monitor project costs closely with strict adherent
to budget;

e Extract advantage from economies of scale based
on our portfolio size, if possible; and

e Monitor closely the labour cost and materials
stock/price trends in the industry before
awarding building contracts.
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Cyber Security:

Loss of data and leakage of confidential information
are the largest costs from cyber-crime that the
Company is facing. The cost of recovering from cyber
attacks, including reputational damage, where the
trust in a company decreases and their brand loses
value, is considerable.

e |T Security Committee established to review
the Group’s IT security policies and risks
assessment;

e The Company’s IT infrastructure are regularly
scanned and patched;

e Risky external IP addresses are blocked;

e All servers and user computers are equipped
with antivirus or endpoint protection;

e Emails are filtered for spam and malware;

e Password control and user access to the systems
and network elements are regularly updated and
reviewed; and

e System backup facilities provide addition layers
of protections.

D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had a confirmation from
the management on the effectiveness of the Systems
of the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board
had reviewed the Systems and were not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact
on the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
operational, financial and compliance areas of the
Systems.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting
out the principles for the Board to determine appropriate
amount of dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The
Company intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim
and final dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings
attribution to its Shareholders after taking into consideration
of factors including, inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements for
business operations; (ii) cash available, financial liabilities and
capital commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges;
and (iv) future development and investment opportunities.
The declaration of dividends or recommendation on such
payment shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules and
regulations including but not limited to the Listing Rules,
the applicable laws of Bermuda and the memorandum and
association and bye-laws of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’
communication policy and the Board shall review it on
a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. The Company
communicates with the Shareholders and/or potential
investors mainly in the following ways: (a) the holding of
annual general meetings and special general meetings
(“SGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific
purposes which provide opportunities for the Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Board; (b) the publication
of announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or
circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press
releases providing updated information of the Group; (c)
the availability of latest information of the Group in the
Company’ s website at https://www.emperorint.com; (d) the
holding of press conference(s) from time to time; and (e)
meeting with investors and analysts on a regular basis and
participate investor road show and sector conferences.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’ s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’ s website and the “Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for such substantially separate issues, including re-election of
retiring Directors. The Company’ s notice to the Shareholders
for the 2020 AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and notices of other general
meetings will be sent to the Shareholders at least 10 clear
business days before the meetings.
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The Chairperson of the 2020 AGM and the chairman/members
of the Board Committee and the external auditor had attend
the 2020 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders.
With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson
of the meeting had explained the procedures for conducting
poll voting during such meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG
Code.

Right to convence/call a General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right
to submit a written requisition requiring a special general
meeting to be called by the Board. The written requisition (a)
must state the object(s) of the meeting; and (b) must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong for attention of the
Company Secretary, and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such
requisitions will be verified with the Company’ s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to
all Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been
verified as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened
as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for
a day not more than two months after the date of deposit
of a proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them may convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said
date of deposit of the requisition. In addition, such meeting
convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Board.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended),
either any number of the registered Shareholders holding
not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such
registered Shareholders, can request the Company in writing
to (a) give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of
the next AGM notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and
(b) circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists must be
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company’ s relevant expenses and not less than six (6) weeks
before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting
in the case of any other requisition. Provided that AGM is
called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the copy has been
deposited, such requisition though not deposited within
the time required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’ s website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company.

Constitutional Documents
There are no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.
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Auditor’ s Independence and Remuneration
The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor
the independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tomatsu is independent
and has recommended the Board to re-appoint it as the
Company’ s auditor at the 2021 AGM. During the Year, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, has rendered audit services and
certain non-audit services to the Group and the remuneration
paid/payable to it by the Group is set out as follows:

BBEN 2 B
ENRESERRREBERZENBRERER
BN 2 B NRERGE MG RREABIE
ZEBUERARME -BRZBEEIKERR K
RAZZEMEY BER TSI ITEE L
AL YEZEEFEN2021FRRABFAS L&
BERARBZZEE - RAFEENR 128 o #
BERTGETE MASERHEZBRS KA
FIRBRSG MAKEEN A THE2HME
ol

Fees paid/payable
Service rendered Fr iR (R BR % BN ENER
HK$’000
FET
Audit services Z PR 7,390
Non-audit services FERZBR TS
- Corporate exercise in accordance with Hong - ¥ BREFT A SRS 768
Kong Standard on Investment Circular BB BREBHNARETIEAEL
Reporting Engagements 400 “Comfort Letters %4005 [ SR Mk EBEESSE
and Due Diligence Meetings” issued by RAERS
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants
~ Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures in - ATEARE EREE AR 43
connection to the Group’s club loans W ER T
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 71 to 217, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’ s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters

HRELREE

Valuation of investment properties

REYXRZI4E

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, combined with the significant assumptions
and estimations involved in determining the fair
value as set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AITHREMEZHEHR S —RAREZER RH
EE@E%%@%;T%?’SW%@&%%&%E% BEX BUie
B TS R I 5T 4P E - #Eﬁﬁ{ﬁfﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬂ&ﬁﬁ

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$42,429,471,000, representing 70%
of the Group’s total assets, with their change in
fair value included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. During the year, the decrease in
fair value of investment properties amounted to
HK$1,210,598,000.

n)iZZZDZ*/\ﬁﬂ%i&%Fﬁ%IMﬁJ’TBZEx  BEEECREYE
42,429 471,0007%75 h BEEEBREEZT0%N HE
/A/’t ETE“‘\:’“EWE#)\Z AEERA-RAFE REMER

AEER 21,210,598, 000/%7E°

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties
are carried at fair value based on the valuations
performed by independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers (the “Valuers”). The
valuations are dependent on key inputs, together with
significant assumptions, that involve judgements. The
relevant inputs and conditions include capitalisation
rates and comparable market transactions with
adjustments to reflect different locations or
conditions for completed investment properties,
changes in market conditions arising from the
ongoing coronavirus disease (“Covid-197) pandemic
and comparable market rents and transactions,
occupancy rate, discount rate, developer’s profit,
and cost to be incurred to complete the development
for investment properties under development.
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in the valuations are disclosed in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

WMFEE M BEHREAMTAmMEE EXEREVEDNE
REEERBEEYEGEMT ([HEM])EERD
ABEIK - HAGEDEKBEEIZEBABBUALREAR
E%Eﬁ ﬁﬂP */F&#Jl%ﬁ *HF’%% %@fo A B3 & AL

FAREXEE(F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
EMnfEEEREXSEE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of investment
properties included:

ATHEREDEZAEREEZBF B

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers;
AR ERME A B e REHIL:

Understanding the Valuers’ valuation basis
and methodologies, the performance of the
property markets, significant assumptions
adgpted and key inputs used in the valuations;
an

THREEMZEEEERTE - MEMS 2R
%ﬁ@g IR EABELAERZ T E2WAH

Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuations by (i) checking the
details of rentals, on a sample basis, to
the respective underlying existing tenancy
agreements; (ii) comparing to relevant market
information on prices, rentals achieved and
capitalisation rates adopted in other similar
properties in the neighbourhood with the
consideration of changes in market conditions
following the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic;
(iii) benchmarking the discount rates against
historical data, market trend and applicable
market yields; and (iv) comparing the budget
costs approved by management to actual
development costs incurred to evaluate
the cost to be incurred to complete the
development for investment properties under
development.
iﬁL()TEE’f R EZHERBEHEENRZHEFS
(u)EﬁiEwa&f@E HBUMEMRESHERS He
MERE B LR 2 M™% éﬁi(%)‘&ﬂ)kﬁﬁ*
7 iii
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters

HRELREE

Valuation of properties under development for sale
KELHEZRREFYEZIAE

We identified the valuation of properties under
development for sale as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole and the significant
estimations associated with the assessment of
whether the properties under development for
sale were stated at lower of cost and net realisable
value (“NRV”). As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s
properties under development for sale amounted
to HKS$5,225,609,000. During the year, write-downs
of HK$24,716,000 and reversals on previously
recognised write-downs of HK$313,311,000 are
recognised for properties under development for sale
respectively.
RITHEFIELHECERTEZHERNAAREZSE
B DDHEHREBEREGaMBERREEMNEBEEA
AR ERELECERTPYERSREK AR A #1
FE([AERFE]MEPREEINRY REKXMGT -
720215%F3A31H E5ERFLEZERTVER
5,225,609,000/8 7T« F N - BLIFIELE 2 ERPMEHER
HiR24,716,0007% 7T & % B 5t A B # 28 #08313,311,000
BT e

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’ s properties under development
for sale are stated at lower of cost and NRV. The
determination of the NRV is based on estimated selling
prices less estimated costs to completion and selling
expenses of these properties. The selling prices are
estimated by reference to the market prices of similar
properties in prevailing market environment with the
consideration of changes in market conditions arising
from the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic. The costs to
completion of the properties under development for
sale are estimated by reference to the development
budget, actual development cost of similar completed
properties with adjustments based on current market
data.

WMINGEE T BERERMTATRE BEEERELEZE
ERAMERKAEZRFEMERTREEIR-BEF
AERFEDERZEMEZ AT EERMET T IR
NHEBR - EE2ZRTMBRETREUME LTS
Bt UERIHUBRRSEER TN - #F
EHEZBERAMEZ T IRAKLRERHUE T IYME
ZHERAE BEREBEXAMGE  WRIBRITHSBIEE

FAREXEE(F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
BMmmEEERERER

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the valuation of properties under
development for sale included:
RITHERELECERPYEZHERELEZEF
B

Assessing the management’s process in
estimating the costs to completion of the
properties under development for sale, on
a sample basis, by comparing them to the
development budget, actual development
cost of similar completed properties of the
Group and comparing the adjustments made
by the management in the estimated costs to
completion to current market data;

M EEEERN A T FELREZERTY
EZRANREF - BHE SEECRIHAUY
FERBE BRERBMNETHR MEERE
JE S 5t ST OB AR B 8 BE B AT T 35 BUBRE LB

Assessing the appropriateness of the NRV of
the properties under development for sale,
on a sample basis, by comparing the NRV to
market prices less estimated costs of selling
expenses achieved in the same project or
comparable properties, based on the current
market development trend, government
regulations in the real estate industry and our
knowledge of the Group’s business with the
consideration of changes in market conditions
following the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic; and
REZAMESERBY FHETENBRNER
UEARTH SEEEEBHTE AERIEE
MABRESR TR E S F 8K R %E
EARRIE B kAl L E 2 T B R L A& B 2
OAETHE MEFERIFHEZERT YR
AEEFENRE ML &

Evaluating the reasonableness of the assessment
performed by the management of the Group on
the key inputs to evaluate the magnitude of their
impact of the market value and adequacy of
impairment being made.
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Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’ s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’ s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’ s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZHEZ2£E (EE) BRAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
B ZBERE

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(co

ntinued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’ s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

RBEORERGREUBERZE
x (&)

MEEERANKELERGHERES
HE URECESNERES BEED
BY ESEERELENRNBREANR
R H) F IR EEANHEE FE 5 o W 477
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MAREEH EEETHBAARELEN
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AHEREMBEHRE (BRERRE) WER
2 BENAR UARGEVBBRRES
EAAMEIEBER S MFEE-

. ERERNSERIXBADNUBE
HMESTEREENERERE UGS MG
BRERBR -KNTAAERE EEMH
TEENEZ T - ATARATHNERER
RAEE2EEE-

A5t (e 81) F R TIEe T8 B M i
REBEZER (BRBZBEDHMN AL
ERMERNRK)HATERABETER

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HZ2£ME (HE)BRAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT
B ZBERE

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’ s report is Kwok Lai Sheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 June 2021

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZHEZ2£E (EE) BRAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBEmER

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B 2202143 H31H IFF/Z

Revenue WA
Contracts with customers BEPEH 5(a)
Leases HE 5(b)
Total revenue A
Cost of properties sales 3 86 E R
Cost of hotel and hotel B JE KB 5 AE B 5 %S A AR
related operations
Direct operating expenses HEREMEZERELERX
in respect of leasing of
investment properties
Gross profit EM
Other income H g A
Fair value changes of REMELARBEZEY
investment properties
Other gains and losses o Y a5 K & 18 7
Impairment allowance (recognised) (%33 )# G2 5 EUHTE 2
reversed for trade receivables VERERCE
Selling and marketing expenses HERTSEEER
Administrative expenses THER
Finance costs MBER 8
Share of result of an associate S —AEE AR 2 EE 18
Share of result of a joint venture NME—HEERECEE 19
Loss before taxation PR 56 A S 1B 9
Taxation credit M IEE % 11
Loss for the year FEEE
(Loss) profit for the year EIEFEE (BE) R :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NESE F SN
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR i A
Loss per share BREE
Basic 2R 13

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE

418,358
898,724

1,317,082
(56,817)

1,357,663
1,007,719

2,365,382
(119,328)

(463,676) (603,426)
(149,247)

647,342
138,176

(135,975)

1,506,653
184,076

(1,210,598)
333,805

(4,129,522)
170,704

(1,440) 289
(128,799) (290,457)
(386,655) (502,570)
(412,477) (674,886)

(54,258) 65,339

(68)

(1,074,972)
204,686

(870,286)

(109)

(3,670,483)
127,121

(3,543,362)

(767,448)
(102,838)

(870,286)

(3,644,359)
100,997

(3,543,362)

HK$(0.21)iE7c ELGLS(RE):p
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SREREREtAEEEER

B P202143H31H IFF/Z

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
(expense)

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations:
- subsidiaries
- an associate

Fair value change on hedging
instruments in cash flow hedge

Fair value change of debt instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Reclassification adjustments for
amounts transferred to profit or
loss upon disposal of debt
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Release of hedging reserve upon
disposal of hedging instruments
in cash flow hedge

FEEE (870,286) (3,543,362)

Ht2mEk s (FX)

HERGEET D EERm 2 HE -

BMEBIIEBIELELZ8E:

-MEB A A 758,651 (631,562)

- —fEEEE A A 11,914 (8,662)
REeEmEHPZHFPTA

NREEZD 35,285
FEREMEENRETE

ARBEZGEHEIAEZ

ARBEEZE (4,721)

REEEREME2EWEE
ARBEZEHIARERES
BB N RRABTER

(3,270)
REEREREH P2
ik T AR RRRR < S5 B

Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

FEAMZEYE (FX)

768,149 (628,369)

Total comprehensive expense for the year F € & H [ X

Wlrkn) (4,171,731)

Total comprehensive income (expense)

for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EHEFEE2EAKE (FX)

FiN/NETE RSN 1,326 (4,272,368)
IR A (103,463) 100,637

Wkl (4,171,731)

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZE25£E (HER) BRAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE MBIk R

At 31 March 2021 2021935314

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties EYHE 14 42,429,471 44,690,869
Property, plant and equipment ER =B d 15 3,057,866 3,185,297
Deposits paid for acquisition of IR EME M HER
investment properties/property, BBz ER
plant and equipment 13,359 15,734
Receivables related to BEH—BERIER ZEKKIE
a development project 14 175,695 162,519
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 532,049 556,404
Debt instruments at fair value through #EBHE M2 @K E
other comprehensive income RRBEZEBIA 17 - 35,959
Interest in an associate R—EBE QR 2 18 127,818 170,162
Interest in a joint venture RN—HAELE R 19 950,865 813,970
Goodwill EES 20 56,683 56,683
Other assets HEibEE 21 3,997 4,052
Pledged bank deposit EEARITER 26 63,000 -
47,410,803 49,691,649
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 12,402 15,676
Properties held for sale BIELEZME 22 1,670,021 315,497
Properties under development FIELEZBEPME
for sale 23 5,225,609 4,858,713
Trade and other receivables B 5 N HE A EIKGRIE 24 1,237,560 1,417,187
Debt instruments at fair value through EBEEMZE RS E
other comprehensive income AREEZEBIA 17 - 46,415
Taxation recoverable AR [ F 1A 38,520 17,987
Deposit in designated bank account B R ETFHRIETE RIT
for development properties RPZER 25 10,040 9,194
Pledged bank deposit EEMBITER 26 353 348
Short-term bank deposits RHERITIE R 26 1,415,665 980,656
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 26 2,718,277 2,943,493
12,328,447 10,605,166
Assets classified as held for sale PERBELEZEE 27 509,872 -
Total current assets BREEE 12,838,319 10,605,166

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMEHIRR R

H2021F3H31H

At 31 March 2021

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Contract liabilities
Amount due to an associate

Amounts due to related companies
Amounts due to non-controlling

interests of subsidiaries
Taxation payable

Unsecured notes - due within one year
Bank borrowings - due within one year
Lease liabilities - due within one year

RBEE
85 NE MR R
aNaE
FE A — B2 R B F0R
FE {5 BB X B 5R0A
NI PNCIPAE 2Ed e 3o

IR

e IR
BEMAZE-—FRIH
RITEE-—FRIH
HERE - —FAIH

28 861,407
29 296,066
30 141,982
31 498,721

32 41,090
195,014
33 2,391,358

34 6,044,633
35 3,164

10,473,435

Liabilities associated with assets HABARBIELEZ
classified as held for sale EERABEZEE 27 34,508
Total current liabilities BREBEE 10,507,943
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,330,376
Total assets less current liabilities #“EERGABER 49,741,179
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Contract liabilities EHEE 29 7,330
Unsecured notes - due after oneyear ~ IR ZE ——F1& 5| H 33 2,514,078

Bank borrowings - due after one year
Lease liabilities - due after one year

Deferred taxation

RITEE-—FRIY
HERBE-—FRIHY
EEBIE

34 15,794,478
35 36,806
36 1,985,706

20,338,398

29,402,781

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

BEXRHE
A
8

37 36,775
27,032,695

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company
Non-controlling interests

RRBVHERAEE#EDS
IR

27,069,470
2,333,311

29,402,781

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 217
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wong Chi Fai

DIRECTOR

EF

Emperor International Holdings Limited Z2%£E (HEK) BRAE
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Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
SERE
DIRECTOR
EF

970,763
16,420
87,556

1,105,010

41,090
330,774
1,092,563
4,540,971
4,790

8,189,937

8,189,937
2,415,229
52,106,878

18,870
4,069,203
16,238,421
39,569
2,018,611

22,384,674
29,722,204

36,775
27,163,460

27,200,235
2,521,969

29,722,204

FTEEFATAEFREZRA M BERERN2021F
6ANEKEESHERRETIZ AHTIE
EREFE:




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERBEER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &t Z202143/31H 1F F/Z

At 1 April 2020 H02054518 36,775 4563248  (497,180) 137473 900,627 22,057,501 27,200,235 2,521,969 29,722,204

Loss for the year ERFR - - - - (T67448)  (767448)  (102,838)  (870,286)
Echange differences arisingon ARSI BFELELZE:
translation of foreign operations:
- subsidiaries -2 758,651 758,651 758,651
- an associate -~ ERELA 11,914 11,914 11,914
Fair value change of debt instruments FA L b 2Bl a 201 EEZ
atfair value through other BRIAZALEERD
comprehensive income 448 854
Reclassification adjustmentsfor ~ RHEEEEHRENE S
amounts transferred to profitor loss 2% EEZ EFTEE
upon disposal of debt instruments  ERZBE 7 EHHE

atfair value through other RESE

comprehensive income (2,239) (2,289) (1,081)

Total comprehensive income EREEANE (AR

(expense] for the year 710,565 (1,791) (767,448) 1,326 (103,463)
Depreciation attributable to assets  ZEERAKEETE

revaluation surplus (920) 1,047 121

Release of assets revaluation REERBRAGERZ

reserve upon disposal of HEBRE

subsidiaries (3,136) 3,136 - - -
Acquisition of additional interests ~ WEHELAE 2B ER

in subsidiaries (note 40) (W) - - 406 (68448 (1,821)
2020 inal dividend paid BIRANFRERS (128,714)  (128,714) (11,299

2020 interim dividend paid BRANERERE - (44131)  (44131)  (5455)

At 31 March 2021 R202153531R 36,775 4,563,248 213,385 133,417 941,254 21,121,391  27,069470 2,333,311 29,402,781

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZZ2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERBEER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 ~ #tZ202143/31H 1+ F/Z

At 1 April 2019 R19E4R1R 36,775 456348 143044 211189 1143 (12567 902805 25988417 31835074 252,766 34357840

(Loss) profit for the year 55 (58)& - - - - - - - (3644359 (3644359 100997 (3,543,362)
Echange differences arisingon AR SN BFELELZE:
translation of foreign operations:

~subsiciares -HEAT - R - - - - - (6316) - B

- an associate -—HEELT - - (8,662) - - - - - (8,662) - (8,662)
Fair value change on hedging RenEHRIHRIR

instrumentsin cash flow hedge 24 EEES - - - - - B - - B8 - BN
Fair value change of debt instruments FAL k2B &TE LS BEZ

atfair value through other BRIEALEERY

comprehensive income - - - - (2,564) - - - (2,564) (2,157) (1)
Reclassification adjustmentsfor At EFAL k2 ENEE

amounts transferred to profitor loss 2% &7 EHTEE

upon disposal of debt instruments  ERZEX 7 EH A%

at fair value through other RESE

comprehensive income - - - - 212 - - - 212 1,197 4,009
Release of hedging reserveupon 1 £B4HE 2

disposal of hedging instruments SR TERAE 2 REE

in cash flow hedge - - - - - () - - g - g
Total comprehensive (expense) — FE2ES (F%)hE

income for the year - - (640,224) - (352) 12,567 - (3644359) (4272,368) 100,637  (4,171,731)
Depreciation attributable to assets  EEEERHELNE

revaluation surplus - - - (920) - - - 1,046 126 - 126
Release of assets revaluation RO ENBARDGER

reserve upon disposal of BEEMEE

subsidiaries - - - (12,79) - - - 72,19 - - -
Acquisition of additional interests MBI BAF 2 ENMER

in subsidiaries (note 49) (W) - - - - - - 30,051 - 3005 (68689) (38,639
Capital contribution from -ENELA FERER A

non-controlling interests

of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 8 8
Arising from changesin cashflow  FEREERFHEL

estimates on amounts due to ReReknRanEs

related companies (note 31 (W31 - - - - - - (2 - (49 - (349
2019 final dividend paid BRN19ERERE - - - - - - - (31685 (231,685 (21,45)  (252,930)
2000 interm dividend paid ERANERERE - - - - - - ST (874 (11508 (14022)
At 31 March 2020 R200E3A318 36,775 456348 (497180) 137473 1,191 - 900627 22057501 27200235 2,521,969 29,722,204

Note: The other reserves of the Group arose from (i) acquisition of  FisE: A&EEZ EMEFEHEIDEKEEZEHE QA

additional interests in non-wholly owned subsidiaries; (ii) ZEEIMER (A M B QR R G S RZ
dilution of interest in a subsidiary from allotment of shares by a DA 2 R W EE R () ARAEEBEALZ
subsidiary; and (iii) deemed capital contributions from owners RIELEmMEAE -

of the Company.

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZE25£E (HER) BRAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

lf11g?iaﬁéziﬁii§i55

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B 2202143 H31H IFF/Z

Operating activities REEY
Loss before taxation BR A A B 1B (1,074,972) (3,670,483)
Adjustments for: P EE
Interest income PSRN (75,854) (119,024)
Interest expenses FERX 396,357 653,595
Depreciation of property, M HWBERREITE
plant and equipment 176,886 180,192
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FABEEEZ I E 24,355 21,784
Share of result of an associate DME—EBE AR 2 EE 54,258 (65,339)
Share of result of a joint venture ~ S —AEDEZ¥E 68 109
Fair value changes of KREMEARBEZE
investment properties 1,210,598 4,129,522
(Reversal of write-downs) RIELREZBERMEL
write-downs of properties (HUR B @) #ORL — F 58
under development
for sale, net (288,595) 446,850
Write-downs of properties FEME 2 W 2 WOR
held for sale 34,708 -
Write-off of an amount due HisH FE U —EEE A F 2
from an associate A 12,979
Impairment allowance MR (#0)E 5 ek FIE
recognised (reversed) ZOREEE
for trade receivables (289)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME MRRERHEZ
plant and equipment &8 457
Gain on disposal of derivative HEMEERITAZ WS
financial instruments (19,977)
Gain on disposal of HE H A& E 2 WS
other assets -
Gain on disposal of HEMR B ARz W
subsidiaries (639,789)
(Gain) loss on disposal of HEFBEMEERZR
debt instruments at fair AEAREBEZ
value through other BEBITAEZ (Wm)EE
comprehensive income (3,270)
Covid-19-related rent concession A E AR S AR <
HeER 16 (545)
Unrealised exchange (gain) loss RERER (W) BB (64,416)
Operating cash flows before Rt B BEEE A2
movements in working capital LERERE 391,223 956,084
Decrease (increase) in inventories 17 & Z @4 () 3,274 (989)
Decrease in properties held for sale #H{EH & 2 ¥ 2 37,545 89,509
Increase in properties under FHEHEZERTYWE G
development for sale (305,827) (757,022)
Decrease in trade and B 5 K H e W RIE 2R
other receivables 169,529 114,514
Decrease in trade and 8 5 K H th &~ RRIE 2R
other payables (100,060) (150,686)
Increase in contract liabilities EHBaEZEM 268,106 27,790 S
Cash generated from operations REEEZH® 463,790

Emperor International Holdings Limited HES
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n _\éiﬁﬁﬁéi

For the year ended 31 March 2021 ~ #tZ202143/31H 1+ F/Z

Income tax (paid) refunded (BROBEREFER
- in Hong Kong Special - REBRFITHER
Administrative Region (105,227) (42,172)
- in Macau Special Administrative - #RPIERI1TE R
Region (38) 20
- in People’s Republic of China -RE AR EME (1,418) 10,157
- in United Kingdom - R (754) 1,286
Net cash from operating activities RE&LE FE 2R FEE 356,353 245,919
Investing activities REEY
Placement of short-term FREBRITER
bank deposits (1,554,608) (1,498,775)
Acquisition of investment WIEREMENRERT
properties and costs incurred REMEREE ZKAR
for investment properties
under development (457,329) (1,535,011)
Advance to a joint venture mA—HAEEDERRK (119,600) (63,200)
Placement of pledged FREERRITER
bank deposits (63,005) (1,598)
Acquisition of property, WHE D 3 - B8 ek 1
plant and equipment (28,659) (124,684)

Deposits paid on acquisition of W EmE M-
investment properties/property, MERRBAXN RS

plant and equipment (9,057) (14,546)
Placement of deposit in BB R ETT N IETE RIT

designated bank account BRFZER

for development properties (97) (94)
Withdrawal of short-term REVE BERITE R

bank deposits 1,119,599 818,781
Proceeds from disposal of HEME A RIFTERIA

subsidiaries 39 88,617 689,520
Proceeds from disposal of & iR 2 W s

debt instruments at HAEAREEZ

fair value through other BT A ZFREHIEA

comprehensive income 390,583
Interest received W ER 71 8, 117,335
Proceeds from disposal of HEME KR REE

property, plant and equipment FT5 k18 100
Proceeds from disposal of HEHEMEEMSRIEA

other assets 40
Acquisition of debt instruments WHEEBHE M2 E W R E

at fair value through other ARBEEZEHIA

comprehensive income (11,718)
Proceeds from disposal of HEMEERI A

derivative financial instruments FT 15 5018 43,959
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMERGHIE

investment properties 21,000
Payments for rental deposits HEES R (600)
Withdrawal of pledged RS HEMBITFR

bank deposits 45,290

Net cash used in investing activities AR & /EE) 2R & /F 5 (869,474) (1,123,618)

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZE25£E (HER) BRAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁéi

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &t Z202143/31H 1F F/Z
Financing activities BMEEE

Bank borrowings raised MEKZIRTTEE 6,211,547 8,382,757
Proceeds from issuance of BIOTEEKHEBRMERIE

unsecured notes 1,928,537 575,434
Advances from related companies BB QA Z 8K 511,647 462,838
Advance from an associate —RBERE 2 BR 45,742 44,496
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITEE (5,181,190) (5,951,930)
Redemption of unsecured notes B O i R R % (2,205,212) (1,300,000)
Interest paid for financial liabilities ~ & a & & (689,373) (963,747)
Dividends paid to owners of MZARBIER A ZRE

the Company (172,845) (360,399)
Repayments to related companies EHXFEERX A (115,606) (619,305)
Acquisition of additional interests W& If 8 A 5] 2 BEIME

in subsidiaries 40 (27,821) (38,638)
Dividends paid to non-controlling  [A1F1 /& 2 7] I B i 25

interests of subsidiaries T ZBRE (16,747) (32,753)
Repayments of lease liabilities ExHEaE (3,844) (1,759)
Interest paid for lease liabilities SIHHEEEERE (1,521) (1,031)
Advance from non-controlling P A Rl FEIE AR A 2 2 BK

interests of subsidiaries - 2,090

Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests of
a subsidiary

Repayments to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries

L EPNGIPE 22 Y 32
EE

ERTH BB ZERER

Net cash from financing activities

KEREES RS FE

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

ReRREFEY R FE

2,943,493

Cash and cash equivalents RBERM RS R
at beginning of the ReEEY
reporting period

Effect of foreign exchange EXEHoTE
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents RBEHRZRE K

at end of the reporting period,
representing bank balances and
cash

ReFEY ARTEHRK
Re

2,718,494

Analysis of the balances of
cash and cash equivalents:
Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash included

in a disposal group classified
as held for sale

RekReFEWMEHRZ N

RITHEBR LIRS
AAATBARELEZ
HE BRIz RITAEER K

RE

2,718,277

2,718,494

Emperor International Holdings Limited HE
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283,314 190,861

(229,807) (686,838)

3,643,852

4,808

2,943,493

2,943,493
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1. General

Emperor International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company’s immediate holding company is Emperor
International Group Holdings Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).
The ultimate holding company of the Company is
Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”), a
limited liability company incorporated in the BVI which
is in turn held by First Trust Services GmbH, being the
trustee of The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY
Trust”), the settlor and founder of which is Dr. Yeung
Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). The address of
the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 51.

Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) have applied
the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

In addition, the Group has early applied the
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions.

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments*

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 Reform - Phase 2!
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 20212
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)*
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement2  Policies*

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates*
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets

and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction*
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2. Application of New and Amendments

to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use?
Onerous Contracts - Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?®
Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018 - 20203

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 April 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2 relate to the modification of financial assets,
financial liabilities and lease liabilities, specific hedge
accounting requirements and disclosure requirements
applying HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to
accompany the amendments regarding modifications
and hedge accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2 (continued)

Modification of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities. A practical
expedient is introduced for modifications required
by the reform (modifications required as a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and made on an economically equivalent basis).
These modifications are accounted for by updating
the effective interest rate. All other modifications
are accounted for using the current HKFRSs
requirements. A similar practical expedient is
proposed for lessee accounting applying HKFRS 16;

Hedge accounting requirements. Under the
amendments, hedge accounting is not discounted
solely because of the interest rate benchmark
reform. Hedging relationships (and related
documentation) are required to be amended to
reflect modifications to the hedged item, hedging
instrument and hedged risk. Amended hedging
relationships should meet all qualifying criteria to
apply hedge accounting, including effectiveness
requirements: and

Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures
in order to allow users to understand the nature
and extent of risks arising from the interest rate
benchmark reform to which the Group is exposed
to and how the entity manages those risks as
well as the entity’s progress in transitioning from
interbank offered rates to alternative benchmark
rates, and how the entity is managing this
transition.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has a London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) bank loan which will be
subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The Group
expects no significant modification gains or losses
should the interest rate benchmark for these loans
change resulting from the reform on application of the
amendments.
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e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F2021F3431H 1 F/&

2. Application of New and Amendments
to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and related amendments

to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement
for at least twelve months from reporting date for
classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period. Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the
conditions are met at the end of the reporting
period, even if the lender does not test
compliance until a later date; and

clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as
an equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised
as a consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to
align the corresponding wordings with no change in
conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at
31 March 2021, and the related terms and conditions
stipulated in the agreements between the Group
and the relevant lenders, the application of the
amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group’s liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3.

20219331 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) are attributed to owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3.

20219331 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interest in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’ s relevant components
of equity and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group’ s and the non-controlling interest’ s
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interest in existing subsidiaries
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in OCI in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
investment properties which are subsequently measured
under fair value model and financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values. The remaining balance
of the purchase price is then allocated to the other individual
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does
not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3.

Emperor International Holdings Limited #Z

F20214F3H31H IFF/Z

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on pro-rata based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or groups of cash-generating
units). Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a
cash-generating unit within a group of cash-generating
units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured
on the basis of the relative values of the operation (or
the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate and
a joint venture are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and OCI of the
associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and OCI
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments in an associate and a joint venture

(continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assess whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the an associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the
Group.
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B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the
particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale
or contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation
in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets
to a third party.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale
is highly probable. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3.

Emperor International Holdings Limited #Z
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Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell, except for financial assets within the scope of
HKFRS 9, investment properties which continue to be
measured in accordance with the accounting policies as
set out in respective sections.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including bundle sales for hotel accommodation
and food and beverage, the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the
price at which the Group would sell a promised good or
service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling
price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it
using appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring the promised goods or services to the
customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement

of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract, that
best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of services.
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20219331 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects
of the time value of money if the timing of payments
agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. For contracts where
the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised property or service
exceeds one year, the transaction price is adjusted for
the effects of a financing component, if significant, and
is included in contract liabilities before the transfer
of the promised property or services. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether
the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by
the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those
costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions)
as an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The
asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services
to which the assets relate. The asset is subject to
impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021
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B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Revenue recognition

Sale of properties is recognised at a point in time
when control of the completed properties is delivered
to buyers. The Group receives deposit from buyers
when they sign the sale and purchase agreement.
The deposits received from the contracts prior to
meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are
recognised as contract liabilities.

The Group provides services to a gaming concessionaire
in Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”)
under service arrangements for gaming operations
in mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall.
The performance obligation represents provision of
gaming-related marketing and public relation services
to the gaming concessionaire. Revenue from such
services are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the Group is entitled to receive
its service income according to the relevant operating
performance from the gaming concessionaire and
the gaming concessionaire simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

The Group provides hotel room to customers. The
performance obligation represents provision of hotel
accommodation services for customers. Revenue from
hotel room is recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the Group is entitled to receive
its income according to the relevant operating
performance from the customers and the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

The transaction price of food and beverage is the
net amount collected from the customer for such
goods and services. The transaction price for such
transactions is recorded as revenue when the good is
transferred to the customer. There is no other separate
performance obligation identified except for delivery
of goods. The revenue on food and beverage sales is
recognised as revenue when the food and beverage are
delivered and titles have been passed.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
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Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group has other contracts that include multiple
goods and services, such as packages that bundle
food and beverage and other services with hotel stays.
For such arrangements, the Group allocates revenue
to each good or service based on its relative stand-
alone selling price. The Group primarily determines the
stand-alone selling price of hotel rooms and food and
beverage based on the amount that the Group charges
when each is sold separately in similar circumstances
to similar customers.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation including investment
properties under development for such purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accounted operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under development are capitalised as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
development.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3.

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets”
in the consolidated statement of financial position
except for those that are classified and accounted for
as investment properties under fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3.

20219331 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost,
deemed cost or revalued amount of items of property,
plant and equipment less their residual values over
their useful lives, using the straight line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Transfer of assets revaluation reserve to retained
profits is made in relation to: (i) the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued item; and (ii) the excess of the
depreciation based on the revalued amount of the item
over depreciation based on the item’s original cost.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. For investment properties under development
and properties under development for sale, the Group
ceases to capitalise borrowing costs as soon as the
properties are ready for the Group’s intended sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs (continued)

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporates assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.

20219331 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)
(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.
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20219331 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
(continued)

The Group also applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease component,
and instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of leasehold land and buildings
and motor vehicles that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. Lease payments on short-
term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model,
right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities
other than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting
from Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property or inventory
as a separate line item on the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F2021F3431H 1 F/&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)
The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021,
and

there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3.

20219331 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions (continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are not
a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period
in which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income when they arise. When a
lease contract contains a specific clause that provides
for rent reduction or suspension of rent in the event
that the underlying assets (or any part thereof) are
affected by adverse events beyond the control of the
Group and the lessee so as to render the underlying
assets unfit or not available for use, the relevant rent
reduction or suspension of rent resulting from the
specific clause is accounted for as part of the original
lease and not as a lease modification. Such rent
reduction or suspension of rent is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers those payments to occur.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. MEMBHRRZEHREER
Financial Statements and Significant FESFTBE (#F
Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued) FESTBE (F)
Leases (continued) HE (&)
The Group as a lessor (continued) FEFIERHHEA (E)
Classification and measurement of leases (continued) MEZz ENE (&)
Rental income which are derived from the Group’s REAEERBEBBE 2 HSKARE
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue. mE5 e
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract BREIEEES AKX D
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease REEHERHEEKRBL 2EL A&
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue EEAEBMBERELNFELSE IKBEEF
from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) to allocate BHIZWA] (BB BREERFELS5%])
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease BEaHRESEEMEMIFHEEBMLS
components. Non-lease components are separated SEHEHEKI D RIBEBE B IEREM
from lease component on the basis of their relative EHEKE D DR

stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits AREZHERS

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for EWHREAREEERE HREEBNE
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. HWEEAFRAR W EAREER
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are E-IRHERRHE R A BENABER /K
considered as additional lease payments from lessees. BAEMAZFEINMEETIE -

Lease modification HEEXR

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that HERORE (WIERGR MR 2 —=B5)
were not part of the original terms and conditions are SERESERAR BFEEBRRHEIONME
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease RENER-

incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of

rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating AEBHEEHEBCRIERBEEEXA
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the HRzFHEEAR YERERBEFTH
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease ERFEA A E RIS E T HERIE - (ERFT
payments relating to the original lease as part of the MECHERIB L &5 -

lease payments for the new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F2021F3431H 1 F/&

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories

Catering goods

Catering goods are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and
are classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold
land element which is measured at cost model in
accordance with the accounting policies of right-of-use
assets, properties held for sale are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on
a specific identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale in the
ordinary course of business are classified as current
assets. Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties
under development for sale are carried at the lower
of cost (or deemed cost for those transferred from
investment properties) and net realisable value.
Costs relating to the development of the properties
include land cost, construction cost and other direct
development expenditure. Cost is determined on a
specific identification basis including allocation of the
related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs
necessary to make the sales.

Properties under development for sale are transferred
to properties held for sale upon completion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F2021F3431H 1 F/&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments subsequently measured at FVTOCI.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(ii) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for
debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result
of interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. All other
changes in the carrying amount of these debt
instruments are recognised in OCl and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised in
profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to OCI
without reducing the carrying amounts of these
debt instruments. When these debt instruments
are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in OCI are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including receivables related to a development project,
amount due from a joint venture, debt instruments
at FVTOCI, trade and other receivables, deposit in
designated bank account for development properties,
pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and
bank balances), and other items (lease receivables and
financial guarantee contracts) which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

,%?\é.\,\ﬁ%#ﬁﬁz mBREER
SRTER (&)

TEEHEE (#)

AT H (&)

é/ﬂﬁ%(ft}
TRMEENDBRLERIE (&)

(i) "EAEBEMEPHERGRHEAALE

BEzEHTA
DEREBEMEERETEAAE
TEZEWKI,E:E’J%?ETEIE%AIWW
FORF B A F B UA A K SME W 25
BENEREHNER ﬁEu”“??{i?r“
TABRBENMBAMEHRA S
M i 3 o R8BI BB 1 (e e R R
TREBE-RERBNERER WHH
i 22 T Ui 25 VR A P R B - T I SR 0 a%
FEHTANKRE ERUERRZES
BF T AR Jorl ECEIWEEEH& £ AR
MEFEREH O EERS

RIBB BTG HRE L BIRALITRE
Az emEEREMEAR ZRE
AEBRBERMEERRE ([RHEEEE])
B eREE(BRE-—BERPIEE
ZIERWHIR B —HAERRZRIA B
B E At 2 Y as ﬁ%/&ﬁfﬁﬁzﬁfrﬂlﬂ
B 5 R B A IR - LB R Y E TR
ERTTIRP 2173 E?ﬁﬁﬁfﬁfﬂ?m 72 H
RITHERIARIBITAER) MRBE BB R
SERBSFAETREN G2 EMWIER (&
Y %?Xlﬁﬁﬂﬁk%ﬁ% %)) ETTRERHA °
BHEERRZ2ENSERBHE LA
RBEE R R E%ﬂﬁ%@u AR 2 B o

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEZ%£ME (EE)BRAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 %k

113



114

20219331 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&
3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. MEMBHRR2FEEREER

Financial Statements and Significant FTESTHER (&
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) FESTBE (F)
Financial instruments (continued) @I A (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

RIBR BV REERFRALITRE
Atz eRMEENEMIAR ZRE (&)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued) (i) EERRBEELNE)
In particular, the following information is taken BEmMs FHEERRELBEL N
into account when assessing whether credit risk REERBUTER:

has increased significantly:

TR T AZINE (A) RAERE
B ER LR eRERL:

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market SNERT SRR RN EERAREE
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant B MEEREBREFLEN B
increase in the credit spread, the credit default AZEERAOEHERBEZIEM
swap prices for the debtor; Z;

existing or forecast adverse changes in B¥ SRSKBERENERNE
business, financial or economic conditions Ale IR R E4E - EFEEI ] &
that are expected to cause a significant EHABERBEBZENKRET
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt :3

obligations;

BEBARLEXEER tENe
BEBIE:

an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse BEFAEZ BT KBS RIMIR

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

BER ERFEHEHBEEANTAH
i R By EBABERER
ZRESIRIE T

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Nim L 5HE 2 R ) - B A KRR
BHEE30R - AEEKEBREEERR

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial BB ERAREBEE I BRIERE
recognition when contractual payments are more EEeBEBCENEREELIFN
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has It ©

reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

20219331 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default; (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term; and (iii) adverse changes in economic
and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group considers the changes in
the risk that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

Definition of default

(iii)

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

20219331 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)
(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable
in accordance with HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3.
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) FESTBE (F)
Financial instruments (continued) @I A (&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)

RIBR BV REERFRALITRE
Az eRMEENEMAR ZRE (&)
(v) BHRESEE S RER(F)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (continued)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or
any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which
the effective interest rate cannot be determined,
the Group will apply a discount rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value
of money and the risks that are specific to the cash
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the discount
rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being
discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Except for debt instruments at FVTOCI and financial
guarantee contracts, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all
financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account. For investments
in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI,
the loss allowance is recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve without reducing the carrying amount of
these debt instruments. Such amount represents
the changes in the investments revaluation reserve
in relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.

20219331 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3.

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount(s) due to an associate/related companies/non-
controlling interests of subsidiaries, unsecured notes
and bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

For the amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries and amounts due to related companies,
if the Group revises its estimates of the timing of
repayments, the carrying amounts are adjusted to
reflect the revised estimated cash flows. The Group
recalculates the carrying amounts by computing the
present value of estimated future cash flows at the
balance’s original effective interest rate. The difference
is adjusted as deemed capital contribution by the non-
controlling interests and the owners of the Company in
equity.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are measured initially at their fair values and, if not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3.

20219331 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms
result in a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment
is not conclusive, the Group considers that the terms
are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
any fee paid net of any fees received, and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10
per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability. Accordingly, such modification of terms is
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees
incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on
the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount
of the relevant financial liabilities will be calculated
at the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the financial liabilities’ original
effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the
modified financial liabilities and are amoritsed over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount
of the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at
the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging
relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading.

Hedge accounting
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging
instruments for cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the
Group documents the relationship between the
hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with
its risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore,
at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis,
the Group documents whether the hedging instrument
is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk.

For the purpose of determining whether a forecast
transaction (or a component thereof) is highly
probable, the Group assumes that the interest
rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows
(contractually or non-contractually specified) are based
is not altered as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.

20219331 H 1FF/E

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness
For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group
considers whether the hedging instrument is effective
in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which
is when the hedging relationships meet all of the
following hedge effectiveness requirements:

there is an economic relationship between the
hedged item and the hedging instrument;

the effect of credit risk does not dominate the
value changes that result from that economic
relationship; and

the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is
the same as that resulting from the quantity of
the hedged item that the Group actually hedges
and the quantity of the hedging instrument that
the entity actually uses to hedge that quantity of
hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge
effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio
but the risk management objective for that designated
hedging relationship remains the same, the Group
adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e.
rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying
criteria again.

In assessing the economic relationship between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument, the
Group assumes that the interest rate benchmark on
which the hedged cash flows and/or the hedged risk
(contractually or non-contractually specified) are
based, or the interest rate benchmark on which the
cash flows of the hedging instrument are based, is not
altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges are recognised in OCl and accumulated
under the heading of hedging reserve. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss and is included in the
other gains or losses line item.

For the purpose of reclassifying the amount of gains
and losses accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve
in order to determine whether the hedged future cash
flows are expected to occur, the Group assumes the
interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash
flows (contractually or non-contractually specified)
are based is not altered as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform.

Amounts previously recognised in OCl and accumulated
in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the
same line of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as the recognised hedged item. However, when the
hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition
of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability,
the gains and losses previously recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the hedging reserve are transferred
from the hedging reserve and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or
non-financial liability. This transfer does not affect OCI.
Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of
the loss accumulated in the hedging reserve will not
be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately
reclassified to profit or loss.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting (continued)

Discontinuation of hedge accounting

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively
only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof)
ceases to meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing,
if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised.
Discontinuing hedge accounting can either affect a
hedging relationship in its entirety or only a part of
it (in which case hedge accounting continues for the
remainder of the hedging relationship).

For cash flow hedge, any gain or loss recognised in OClI
and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity
and is recognised when the forecast transactions is
ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or
loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, interest in an associate and interest in a
joint venture, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
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20219331 H 1FF/E

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. Such a presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and assets for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above
general principles set out in HKAS 12 Income Taxes (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.
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Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences on initial recognition of the relevant right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision
to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in OCl or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in OCI or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the
relevant tax authority will accept the uncertain tax
treatment used, or proposed to be used by individual
group entities in their income tax filings. If it is
probable, the current and deferred taxes are determined
consistently with the tax treatment in the income tax
filings. If it is not probable that the relevant taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, the
effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.
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Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS) using
exchanges prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021
3.
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Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government subsidies

Government subsidies are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the subsidies
will be received.

Government subsidies are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
subsidies are intended to compensate.

Government subsidies related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable. Such subsidies are
presented under “other income”.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)
Share options granted to employees (continued)
When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes other than the costs directly attributable to the
development of the properties, which are capitalised
as part of the cost of qualified assets, are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Critical Accounting Judgements and

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company (“Directors”) are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

4. Critical Accounting Judgements and

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
or assets arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the Directors
have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties located in the People’s Republic of China
(“The PRC”) and Macau in the aggregate carrying
amounts of HK$12,220,700,000 as at 31 March 2021
(2020: HK$12,067,700,000) are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through
sale. Therefore, the Directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of such
investment properties located in The PRC and Macau
are recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result,
the Group has recognised deferred tax liabilities of
HK$1,850,940,000 (2020: HK$1,869,258,000) on changes
in fair value of investment properties as the Group is
subject to income tax in the respective jurisdictions, on
the assumption that these investment properties will
be recovered through use.
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In respect of investment properties that are located
in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong
Kong”) and the United Kingdom (“UK”) with aggregate
carrying amounts of HK$30,208,771,000 (2020:
HK$32,623,169,000), the Directors concluded that these
investment properties are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in these investment
properties over time, rather, through sale. Therefore, in
measuring the Group’s deferred taxation in investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of the investment
properties located in Hong Kong and UK measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
the investment properties situated in Hong Kong, as it is
expected that the Group will not subject to any income
taxes on disposal of its investment properties situated
in Hong Kong. From April 2019, the Group’ s investment
properties in UK will be subject to UK tax on gains arising
from disposals because of the changes in UK tax rule. As
a result, the Group has considered the impact of deferred
tax on changes in fair value of investment properties as
the Group is subject to income tax in UK. As fair value
losses have been recognised on investment properties
in UK during the year ended 31 March 2021, no deferred
tax asset has been recognised due to unpredictability of
future profit streams.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties

The investment properties of HK$42,429,471,000 at 31
March 2021 (2020: HK$44,690,869,000) are measured at
fair value. The amount is based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by the independent firms of
qualified professional property valuers (the “Valuers”)
using property valuation techniques which are
dependent on key inputs and significant assumptions
that involve judgement. The relevant inputs and
conditions include:

capitalisation rates and comparable market
transactions with adjustments to reflect different
locations or conditions for completed investment
properties with the consideration of changes
in market conditions following the ongoing
coronavirus disease (“Covid-19”) pandemic; and

comparable market rents and transactions, occupancy
rate, discount rate, developer’s profit and cost to be
incurred to complete the development for investment
properties under development.

The basis of valuation is disclosed in note 14. Changes
to these assumptions and inputs would result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the
amount of gain or loss reported in the profit or loss.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and 4. BEREFTHERMEFTTHABAREE
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty ZEERIR (&
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of investment properties (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages the Valuers to perform the
valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the
end of each reporting period, a designated team works
closely with the Valuers to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level
2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will
first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs
can be derived observable quoted prices in the active
market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the
Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations
will be reported to the Directors.

Estimated net realisable value on properties under

development for sale

The Group’s properties under development for sale
are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.
The determination of the net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less estimated costs to
completion and selling expenses of these properties.
The selling prices are estimated by reference to the
market prices of similar properties in prevailing market
environment with the consideration of changes in
market conditions arising from the ongoing Covid-19
pandemic. The costs to completion of the properties
under development for sale are estimated by reference
to the development budget, actual development cost of
similar completed properties with adjustments based
on current market data. If the actual net realisable
value on properties under development for sale is
less than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the budgeted
development cost, material write-down may result.

The carrying amount of properties under development
for sale as at 31 March 2021 is HK$5,225,609,000 (2020:
HK$4,858,713,000). During the year, write-downs of
HKS$24,716,000 (2020: HK$446,850,000) and reversal on
previously recognised write-downs of HK$313,311,000
(2020: Nil) are recognised for properties under
development for sale respectively.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgements and 4. ERETHHE R THARE
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty ZEZEERR (&)

(continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of lifetime ECL of trade receivables individually, after
considering the financial background, creditability,
ageing, and likelihood of collection with reference to
repayment history and/or past due status of respective
receivables. Estimated loss rates are based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
receivables and are adjusted for forward-looking
information.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 43.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is HK$63,303,000 (2020: HK$43,101,000)
(see note 24 for details), net of impairment allowance
of HK$14,340,000 (2020: HK$46,202,000).

Deferred tax assets

At 31 March 2021, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$153,277,000 (2020: HK$126,233,000) (see note 36
for details) in relation to unused tax losses have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$1,532,293,000
(2020: HKS$1,429,251,000) due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred
tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In case where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, a material
reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognised in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal takes place.

A THABAREZETERER (F)

B S EWHEZREF G
AEEEEELE2ELRUHIAZER
BRRBERNEBUBER EB EE
B M Wk 2 AT BT - (E R EHE 5 UK
Rz =HEREEE RS R A BAXE
MW FHAZELBREOR
WARERTE MEERET TR -

E‘EH)ME.f?Eﬁ%@%f%éﬂEﬁZ“%b@ﬁlW =)
BHREEERMAEEEZRKKREAZE
R BB 5543 o

2021F3A31R ESEKRBZERA
{8 /463,303,0007% 7T (20204 : 43,101,000
BIT) (B RN T24) % R E R E
14,340,000 7T (20204 : 46,202,000/5
JT) °

#M2021F3A31H  EA AR AMEEEZ
JEFERR T8 & EE49153,277,0005 7T (20204 :
126,233,000 7t) (1B RWE36)ER
e ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ:ﬂ%ﬁqﬁﬁs o FL A R 2K i FI 2R
JRZ A BRI WEBSB T 2 HIEE B
1,532,293,0005% 7T (20204 : 1,429,251,000
@ﬁ)ﬁEMEUEIEZéfF BLEHBEEZ

W_{FI%@?%&X% NP K
EbﬁﬁZiEXm’“leh%m S = o W7
EEZBEBRRRKEF D EHH AR REE &
FURIE%FZ%M%@ I % PR 7% 13 [m] 2%
&7 B RIE RS R RER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 22021434314 I F/E

5. Revenue
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

(a) Contracts with customers

Hotel and hotel related B EREE AR ES
operations:
Recognised over time: P — B B ] e 2R

Service income from gaming

18 R A

5. A

REBZWADHIT

(a) EEEHW

operations 209,075 926,845
Hotel room income BIEEE WA 50,693 151,497
Others Hi - 1,444

259,768 1,079,786
Recognised at a point in time: P TE Ry P HE AR
Food and beverage sales BHRIHE 74,833 129,747
Others Hi 1,549 2,880
76,382 132,627
336,150 1,212,413
Sales of properties recognised REEHEBRIZWEHE
at a pointin time 82,208 145,250
Revenue from contracts REFEEFEHZWA

with customers

418,358 1,357,663

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) and the expected timing of recognising
revenue are as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second year E_F
Over two years MENE

EEFENPZANBENEENR
78

EEFSRENEENRZECRETH
By RIETT) AR TR FER M AR RGN T :

e
77
37
|:|

497,708 82,100
65,237 139,840
- 65,237

562,945 287,177

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEE2&£ME (BEFE) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

5. Revenue (continued)
(a) Contracts with customers (continued)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with

customers (continued)

All sales or services rendered from hotel and hotel
related operations are for contracts with an original
period of one year or less. As a practical expedient
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated

5. LA (&)

(@) EFEH (&)
TEEEFENTZRBENER
WRXZE (&)

FrBEE MBERBEBE R ZIHE
SARBHBRBRS —FHARNE
# e ERBBUERELERELSHK A
THRETE PEEZEHRTENEE

to these remaining performance obligations is not ZRGEBERRTHE-
disclosed.
(b) Leases (b) BE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET
Total revenue arising from leases: FHEE£ 2B A :
For operating leases: MEEHEMS -
Lease payments that are fixed & 7E Sk K FE P HE B s Al &R 2
or depend on an index MERIE
or a rate 993,822
Variable lease payments TKRERIEH R 2
that do not depend on AIEMEENRIA
an index or a rate 13,897
1,007,719

6. Segment Information
The Group’s operating and reportable segments are
lease of properties, properties development and
hotel and hotel related operations for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of performance.

The segment information reported externally was
analysed on the basis of their products and services
provided by the Group’s operating divisions which
is consistent with the internal information that is
regularly reviewed by the executive directors of
the Company, the chief operating decision makers
(“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance. This is also the basis of
organisation in the Group, whereby the management
has chosen to organise the Group around differences in
products and services.

7 REHR
AREZEERIZREBHEAYEM
YR TR RODE ROBE AR b
SRR LIRS -

SMNERER 2 D FAE B AR IR AN SR B 25 B
FItR (2 B an M BR# 0 i - BB R B #ATT
EF AXELERRE ([ET2EERK
1) REBERDEMFHERRMEBERN
ZNERE BB — B e I IR AR B 2 4B A
HE it BEECEENER MRS Z
Z R AR E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F2021F3431H 1 F/&

6. Segment Information (continued)
Principal activities of the operating and reportable
segments are as follows:

Lease of properties - Completed investment
properties held for rental
purpose

Properties - Properties development and

development redevelopment for sale
purpose

Hotel and hotel - Hotel and hotel related

related operations operations in Hong Kong

and Macau including mass
market hall, VIP room

and slot machine hall
operations and provision
of gaming-related
marketing and public
relation services for Grand
Emperor Hotel in Macau

The CODM review the hotel and hotel related operations
in Macau along with that in Hong Kong and hence
they are grouped and identified as a single operating
segment - hotel and hotel related operations.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 3. Segment results represent
the profit earned by or loss suffered from each segment
without allocation of central administration costs,
interest income, government subsidies, finance costs,
gain (loss) on disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI,
share of result of an associate, share of result of a
joint venture and unallocated other gains and losses
including gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain on
disposal of derivative financial instruments and write-
off of an amount due from an associate. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

140 Emperor International Holdings Limited 2% (EFF) BIRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &t Z202143/31H 1F F/Z

6. Segment Information (continued)
Information regarding the above segments is reported
below:

For the year ended 31 March 2021
Segment revenue and results

Segment revenue AERA
- from external customers - REIBRF
Segment results PRREE
Interest income FISHA ‘
Gain on disposal of debt HEBBEMPERRTE
instruments at FVTOCI AMrEEZEBRIAZ W&
Government subsidies B8
Corporate expenses, net rERER-FH
Finance costs HBER
Share of result of an associate SE—HBERR 2 EE
Share of result of a joint venture AME—REELE EE
Loss before taxation bR A0S 18
Taxation credit HMEBHE
Loss for the year FEER

Other information

Amounts included in the measure of FtEDEEERAZFIE:
segment results:

Depreciation of property, mE BERBEINE
plant and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets A EE 27 &

Fair value decrement in RENERRBEZAE
investment properties

Impairment allowance recognised ~ # (BE) & HEMFEZ
(reversed) for trade receivables WERE

Loss on disposal of property, HENE BRRRELER
plant and equipment

Reversal of write-downs of properties #{EiH&E 2 % B %E 2
under development for sale, net WOR B e — 38

W;ite-downs of properties held FIEHE 2 W% 2 MR
or sale

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not
included in the measure of segment results (included in
corporate expenses, net):

at corporate level e

6. DHEEHR (&

BE LS ER2RMT -

EF2021F3H31H 1FF/Z

TEBRAREE

898,724 82,208
(494,716) 234,226

Ht&®

1,210,598
1,539
288,595

34,708

EHRETFEI2EERKREERT

336,150

(398,019)

145,013
24,355

(99)

1,317,082
(658,509)
75,854

3,270
24,733
(53,517)
(412,477)
(54,258)
(68)

(1,074,972)

204,686
(870,286)

145,013
24,355

1,210,598
1,440
247

288,595

34,708

=
ENHE

B WRFTAZHRE (GFALXERF

#):

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, X EERHA 2 Y% - #as RiE 2




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F2021F3431H 1 F/&

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. "HER (&
For the year ended 31 March 2020 ELE20209F3 314 1F F/E
Segment revenue and results TEWARES
Hotel and
Lease of Properties  hotel related
properties  development operations Total
B IE BB &
MERE NELRE RS k]
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FET FHT THT
Segment revenue ok LN
- from external customers - RENPRF 1,007,719 145,250 1,212,413 2,365,382
Segment results LR (3,284,060 (462,057) 82,520 (3,663,597)
Interest income FEWA 119,024
Loss on disposal of debt HEBBAMEAKRNE
instruments at FVTOCI PhBEZEBRIAZER (4,009)
Unallocated other gains and losses K22 2 A dfias & E 18 646,787
Corporate expenses, net PEER-FE (159,032)
Finance costs HBER (674,886)
Share of result of an associate PE—BABENR XA 65,339
Share of result of a joint venture ME—MEELEZEE (109)
Loss before taxation BB AT 1B (3,670,483)
Taxation credit REER 127,121
Loss for the year FEER (3,543,362)
Other information Hib &R
Amounts included in the measure of & EDMEEER AZFE:
segment results:
Depreciation of property, nE BERREINE
plant and equipment - - 147,497 147,497
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FAEEEZNE - - 21,784 21,784
Fair value decrement in REMEDRBERE
investment properties 4,129,522 - - 4,129,522
Impairment allowance recognised %R (&) E S EWHAE 2
(reversed) for trade receivables WERE 9% - (385) (289)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BERZEESE
plant and equipment 5 - 452 457
Write-downs of properties under FIEHECERPMELZ
development for sale, net MR — %58 - 446,850 - 446,850
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not THRE\ETIELERAKEBFEDEX
included in the measure of segment results (included in BRI ARFTAZREB(GFAREER—F
corporate expenses, net): #)
HKS$’000
FET
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, ®“X2EWEE 2 WE KELREZ
at corporate level e 32,695
No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by HRAEERGEDREHDZEENBE
operating segment is disclosed as they are not regularly DT EERRE T T ERLEARENES

provided to the CODM for review. B - UL I IR R 2 E AT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. DEER (&)
Geographical information i 35 & R
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, The REERES B ORI REBELEER -
PRC, Macau and UK.
The Group’s revenue from external customers and REBERBINEEP ZWARBBEIER
information about its non-current assets, other than HEE(IMEBRAE-—BERER 2B
receivables related to a development project, debt FE -BRAMEEARSTFEAABEZE
instruments at FVTOCI and pledged bank deposits, by BIARBERRITER) Z2EHN (REE
geographical location of the assets are detailed below: IR EE D) A
Revenue from
customers Non-current assets
REEFZWA FRBEE
For the year ended
31 March As at 31 March
BZE3A31HILEE MA3H31H
2021 2020 2021 2020

HK$’000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
FET TR FHERT THET

Hong Kong BE 958,292 31,721,840
The PRC s 125,957 9,923,594
Macau P! 1,184,896 4,489,743
UK ] 96,237 3,357,994
2,365,382 49,493,171
Information about major customers FEEFZEHR
During the year, revenue derived from one (2020: one) RAFE - REMGEAREE B AL0%A
customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue 218 (2020 1B)BP 2 WA ZE
of the Group’s revenue amounted to HK$209,075,000 209,075,000/% 7T (20204 : 928,218,000/%
(2020: HK$928,218,000). The revenue is related to the T0) o sz WA BB S OB IE AR IS B R o

hotel and hotel related operations.

Emperor International Holdings Limited H2%M (BR)BRAE 444
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 ~ #tZ202143/31H 1+ F/Z

7. s REE

7. Other Gains and Losses

FIFEHEZERTMELZ

Reversal of write-downs (write-downs)

of properties under development WO B B (MUK —F 5

for sale, net (Note) (HaE) 288,595 (446,850)
Net exchange gain (loss) PEH Wz (E18) 558 79,918 (29,233)
Write-downs of properties held for sale #F{EH & 2 %% 2 #iUR (34,708) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &N B ARz W

(note 39) (H3£39) 639,789
Gain on disposal of derivative HEMEemITAZ W

financial instruments 19,977

Write-off of an amount due

s R — R 2 AR 2 BB

(12,979)
170,704

from an associate

333,805

RAFE BF2REANTISRFELYER
EHEZ B RPYEOT &R FEET
TR T - 3 ER MUK 24,716,0007% 7T (2020
F : 446,850,000/ 7T ) [ % [B] 5F A 2 #E R
2 Wi313,311,0007% 7T (20204 « #&) o

Note: During the year, the Directors reviewed the net realisable B 5 -
value of the properties under development for sale
with reference to the current market environment
and recognised write-downs of HK$24,716,000 (2020:
HK$446,850,000) and reversed previously recognised
write-downs of HK$313,311,000 (2020: Nil).

MBEHN

8. Finance Costs 8.

Interests on: A
- bank borrowings -IRITEE 417,784 647,296
- lease liabilities -MHEAaE 1,521 1,031
- unsecured notes - EEBER 261,097 288,691
- amounts due to related companies - JEfTREE A A FUE 14,322 35,385

694,724 972,403

Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of & : RAEBIREEK AT 2

qualifying assets BB AR FIE (298,367) (318,808)
396,357 653,595
Bank charges RITEH 16,120 21,291

412,477 674,886

RAFEZERNEERATR —RIEE
BMEREL UYEFHEENEXRI02%E
3.71% (2020 : 3.76%%4.08% ) 5t & °

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose
on the general borrowing pool and are calculated by
applying capitalisation rates ranging from 3.02% to
3.71% (2020: 3.76% to 4.08%) per annum.

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEE2&£ME (BEFE) BRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &t Z202143/31H 1F F/Z

9. Loss Before Taxation 9.

Loss before taxation has been arrived B EiAlEED 1K
at after charging:

Staff cost, including directors’ BEINA (BIEESEHE)

remuneration
Retirement benefit scheme IRRTE FET 8 R

BRI A& 18

476,869 667,164

contributions 11,948 14,771
488,817 681,935

Auditor’s remuneration % ERD B & 7,390 7,390
Commission expenses in gaming BREEBzBeRX

operations (included in selling and (Bt AHE R

marketing expenses) MEGHEER) 38,200 160,783
Cost of properties held for sale EERBHAZZ

recognised as an expense FIELEWMERAK 56,817 119,328
Cost of inventories in respect of ERARI ZBER

hotel and hotel related operations BEAERERTFERAR

recognised as an expense

Depreciation of property, ME - BRERREITE

plant and equipment

25,341 44,649

176,886 180,192

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEEZITE 24,355 21,784
Loss on disposal of property, HEME #EREZH BB
plant and equipment 247 457
Loss on disposal of debt instruments H&@EBEMEEWETE
at FVTOCI (included in ARnBEZEBILAZEE
administrative expenses) (FFATTHER) 4,009
and after crediting: REFtA:
Gain on disposal of debt instrument HEFBEMEPENKGGE
at FVTOCI (included in otherincome) AR BEZEFKIAZ
U ek (5T AEAMBYA) -
Government subsidies (included BT R B (R AE AU A)
in other income) (Note) (Htat) -
Interest income from a joint venture m—EAZFEWE ZF B A 15,505
Interest income from debt instruments F@E M2 E U T E
at FVTOCI (included in otherincome) AARABEZEHEIAZHE
WA (FrAE A A) 19,683
Other interest income H A F) 2 A 83,836
Covid-19-related rent concession N ERESHEBCHSESR
(note 16) (H1it16) -

Note: During the year, the Group recognised government
subsidies of HK$24,733,000 (2020: Nil) in respect of Covid-
19-related subsidies, of which HK$23,627,000 (2020: Nil)
relates to Employment Support Scheme provided by the
Hong Kong government.

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZE2

fiiE: RAFE ARBERIBEMEALERES
H A4 BY < BR R # 8)24,733,0008 7T (2020
&) - HrR23,627,000% 7T (20204 ¢
) MEBBUFRMEN [R3LE] FHEIA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 ~ #tZ202143/31H 1+ F/Z

10.Directors’, Chief Executives’ and 0.EE-FETHRAEBZHER
Employees’ Emoluments 1& & %r M
() Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments () EBERFETHAEMS
Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the RAFE EERTBETHRAEMESIR
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing BEALETRARAMEHHELT

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEE2&£ME (BEFE) BRAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 &#k

Rules and CO, are as follows:

2021 2021%
Fees ik
Other emoluments: Hife
Salaries and other benefits (Note a) e REMET (HHa)
Retirement benefit schemes RIBRIE R
contributions
Total emoluments e
2020 2020%
Fees we - 500 500 250 250 280 280 280 2,340
Other emoluments: Hit -
Salaries and other benefits (Note a) S REMET (H#a) - 4731 2,631 5,663 2421 - - - 15,446
Performance related incentive BRBERZEDIE
payment (Note b) (Hith) - - - 4,500 - - - - 4,500
Retirement benefit schemes RINBRIF B
contributions - 332 184 60 60 - - - 636
Total emoluments “H % - 5,563 3315 10,473 2,731 280 280 280 22,922

Notes: P 5T

(a) Other benefits include non-exclusive use of motor (a) HtbEAMBIEFBIEZHAE BEE - G
vehicles, yacht, club debentures and membership. BEHREEE-

(b) The performance related incentive payment is (b) BXBRBHWZRBFIEDZ2RFEAZLE
determined with reference to the operating results ¥EVEBEFRERNE THE BEARE KA
taking into account certain adjustments, individual LB THBIEERE -
performance and comparable market statistics for the
year.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

10.Directors’, Chief Executives’ and
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

(i

(ii)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments

(continued)

Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
are also chief executives of the Company and their
emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by them as chief executives.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The emoluments of non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors
shown above were mainly for their services as
Directors.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2020: two) were Directors
whose emoluments are set out above. The total
emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three)
individuals were as follows:

10. %
(=
(i)

(ii)

S FRTHRAEBZHMER
B3 (&)
EERIBTBARMS (&)

BESEEE N EREZL LR ARAT
ZEBITHRAR  BRER L XRE 2 M
TERREERIZITHRABRMHR
BRTERHNE

AEFMTRATEEHEEIBREEM
EEARE MANEEEHAREHERE
Z B o A EFTRIFITE R MBI
HTESNMe I BEFERANFELE
SRM 2 BRTG R REN -

18 & % i
EXASESEESHEMALH 25
(20205 28 REF REZMEH
P EX e 82 T34 (20204 : 3% ) &= ¥
ALz @R T

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FA&ET

Salaries and other benefits e kEMBER 11,938
Retirement benefit schemes RORAE A FT 8 3

contributions 314

12,252

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BREHIMN T LATEE :

Number of individuals

AB
2021 2020
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/% 7t £2,500,0007% 7T -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7t £3,000,000/% 7T -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/5 7t £3,500,000/5 7T -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/5 7t £4,500,000/5 7T 3

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the five
highest paid employees as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office for both years. None of the directors
and the five highest paid individuals has waived
any emoluments during both years.

RMEFE AEEHES N F58K
= MALTHM ERIMAREE LR
MAR Z FE SRR ERBLAE -F
ENSEESHMA LR M IESEHE
PREE LT H B
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10.Directors’, Chief Executives’ and

Employees’ Emoluments (continued)
(iii) Retirement benefit schemes

The Group participates in a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the
“ORS0O” Scheme) and the mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) established under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of independent
trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the
MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying
within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the
Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required to
join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules
of the schemes. Where there are employees who
leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions, the contributions payable by
the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees
of a subsidiary of the Group in Macau since
1 September 2014. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under control of independent trustees. The
retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or
loss represents contributions payable to funds
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
scheme. Where there are employees of the Group
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited
contributions.

Emperor International Holdings Limited 3EE2£ME () BRAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F2021F3431H 1 F/&

10.EE - FETHAEZHMER
EEHM (&)
(iii) BIRBERIGHE

AEE2 R —ETERERE BRIE
T BRI SR 2 B XR
PREH &) (T8 SRR IRET 81 ) & 720004F
DRAREELBHIE LB B &S
R ZBHEMERTERAE ([RESA
) ZEFFAICEERLAEEZE
ENRRE  WARSEAFHFERRH
BIUEEAEE  ANBES A 8RR
BB X RAGTENB ZRBEHAE
BRELBERAGEAREMS N
5818 & 5T &l - HEX20009F12 1 H A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

10 ZE5 - FETHABZHMER
BEFHM (&)
(i) 3B PR 5 B (A7)

10.Directors’, Chief Executives’ and

Employees’ Emoluments (continued)
(iii) Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in
Macau and The PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the Macau
and The PRC government. The Group is required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the schemes.

During the year, the retirement benefit schemes
contributions were HK$11,948,000 (2020:
HK$14,771,000).

AEEZRFRTEMNBRABZEER
To3 Bl A e R PIBRAT Ko b B R B 32
ZBRERRRENAE 2K E - N
ERZESFM X EA O LLAZS
RRERETEIHR ARERENREM
BE o NEE U RINE NGB A%
EzEEERNRRGFE 2R EET

e

RARFEE RRBENGEHRESES
11,948,000/ 7t (20204 : 14,771,000
BIT) °

11.Taxation Credit 11. FiEIK &

2021 2020
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FERT FHET

Taxation credit comprises: MIBE RO

Current tax REATRIE

Hong Kong Profits Tax BEERNER (12,884) (43,701)
Macau Complementary Tax RIS R AR (1,527) (26,662)
UK Income Tax HEHFTSHE (4,023) (1,415)
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEPERED (1,272) (1,071)
(19,706) (72,849)

Reversal of Macau Complementary Tax % [B] {F 4 3% P9 F7 15 7 70 Bt B 4
provision in respect of prior years 69,032 91,769

TFEEFEEZ (TR)

Over(under)provision in respect of
prior years

Hong Kong Profits Tax ER NG 413
Macau Complementary Tax RIS AEN -
UK Income Tax HEMRBH (11)
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax FESEAER (70)
332

Deferred taxation credit (note 36) B IEE R (B7i£36) 155,304 107,869
204,686 127,121

Emperor International Holdings Limited =Z2%E (HE) BRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 &k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F2021F3431H 1 F/&

11.Taxation Credit (continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

The Macau Complementary Tax (“CT”) is calculated
at the applicable rate of 12% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. Pursuant to the CT
Law, the statutory right to issue CT assessment on the
estimated assessable profits in a year of assessment
will expire in five consecutive years after that year of
assessment. At the end of the reporting period, the
Directors reassessed the adequacy of the CT provision
and determined to reverse part of the Group’s relevant
CT provision of HK$69,032,000 for the 2015 year of
assessment (2020: HK$91,769,000 for the 2014 year of
assessment) accordingly.

UK Income Tax is calculated at the applicable rate of
20% of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of The PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of The PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to
the loss before taxation per consolidated statement of
profit or loss as follows:

Loss before taxation B 5 A B 1B

11L.BIEE R (&)

FENGH D HIRE W EFE 2 5t E
AR MI1R16.5%5T E -

BFIFTS Az ([fFER]) T lZ M fE
FE 2T ERDGE M 2 8 A B R12%:t
B REBEMAVOE NBXFHFEARMG
ot B AR B M 2 8 78 B AT IR 2 0 E HE R
REABRFERTEEDFRE M RS
R E=pMARBR TR MEENEL
ATt 64 1t R TE % (3] B o) AR &= [ 102015
FRF B E 2 AH R il JE 7R 8 £569,032,000/8
7T (20204 : 20144 5F % 5 /£91,769,000/8
JT)°

B PTE B )0 B HE M B F 2 2 b 5t ek
T ) 2 38 P R 20%5t & o

RBFEORMERE ([REMEHIE])

REEMBPOEERIGD - F BB AR
PR E F 2 2 B R 25% ©

FANRAE LA BESBRERME RN
AIE R Y ARLAT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Wloretere (3,670,483)

Taxation credit at Hong Kong

BEBNSH16.5%H 2

Profits Tax of 16.5% I & 177,370 605,630
Tax effect of share of result of DME—EEBERRER L

an associate M2 (8,953) 10,781
Tax effect of share of result of NME—EEELEEREL

a joint venture M2 (11) (18)
Tax effect of income not taxable HEBEMEs BEARBALZ

for tax purpose WG 2 164,447 184,981
Tax effect of expenses not deductible B M E Al HUB L H 2

for tax purpose WG s (221,527) (762,339)
Utilisation of tax losses previously ) A STAT AR 2 TR

not recognised &5 18 18,293 21,828
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  FAHERREBEZHETE (37,821) (52,610)
Effect of different tax rates of oS NN R AT br -

subsidiaries operating REBFEARzTE

in other jurisdictions 33,656 25,970
Reversal of CT provision in respect of BETEmabiigs

prior years 69,032 91,769
Overprovision in respect of prior years FF##EBZ 56 332
Others Hh 10,144 797
Taxation credit for the year FRHIAK R 204,686 127,121

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEZ£E (EK) BRAFE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 &%k



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F202143431H 1 F/&

12.Dividends 12.1 &
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET
Dividends recognised as distribution ~ FRERIED K Z K E
during the year:
Final dividend paid in respect of B R2020F RAAR B -
2020: HKS$0.035 per share HH%0.035/% 7T (20204 :
(2020: HK$0.063 per share M2019F 2 REAR B &
in respect of 2019) & 1%0.063757T) 231,685
Interim dividend paid in respect of B2IR2021FH R 8 -
2021: HK$0.012 per share H%0.012% 7T (20204
(2020: HK$0.035 per share B2020F 2 HHARR B B
in respect of 2020) &[%0.035%5T) 128,714
360,399

A special dividend of HK$0.01 per share amounting to
approximately HK$36,775,000 has been declared by the
Board on 25 May 2021.

The final dividend of HK$0.012 per share in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: final dividend
of HKS$0.035 per share) amounting to approximately
HK$44,131,000 has been proposed by the Board and
is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

M2021F5H25H - EF €5k FMk0.01)8
TTZ HF RIS - $£#936,775,000/ 7T ©

BB REEHE2021F3A31H ILF
EFA%0.012%8 7T (20204 : REARR B F &
0.035/8 70) 2 R HA % B - £ 4944,131,0007%
T EAFRERERERRAFAS LA
BAEEE-

Emperor International Holdings Limited HEZ%£ME (EE)BRAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 %k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &%

13.Loss Per Share

F20214F3H31H IFF/Z

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

13.

BREE
A B A A 5 A A 48 T 4R 18 A
TRURHE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET
Loss F
Loss (loss for the year attributable R EBREARAEBEZ
to owners of the Company) for BE (KRAFHEEB A
the purpose of basic loss per share EEEEEER) (3,644,359)
2021 2020
Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of RAESREAEESERZ
ordinary shares in issue for the BEITERRMETSE

purpose of basic loss per share

3,677,545,667

Emperor International Holdings Limited #Z
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 %R

Diluted loss per share is not presented as there was no
dilutive potential ordinary share for both years.

14.Investment Properties

The Group leases out various offices premises,
industrial premises and residential premises and retail
shops/complexes under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 15 years, with unilateral rights to extend
the lease beyond initial period held by lessees only.
Majority of the lease contracts contain market review
clauses in the event the lessee exercises the option to
extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are
denominated in the respective functional currencies
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain
residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to
purchase the property at the end of lease term.

S£E (EF) BRAFE

14.

A A S 1B R J2 19 3 A e 7 A S S AR
WA 25| g EE -

REWE
$$@$Eiﬁtﬂfuﬁﬂiz%«**% EHH
ZEARRENE TEMEREEDERS
EEE mE - HE—RYIZAEBHIEIF
REAERBABENE @R EHAEHRT
RZE VIR EARR LASN o i A FE A 175 I HA 4
ABLBESHOHEMEER KK

HRAAEHEANGSEERSB YR
BEtE mAKE Y ERBEE R AN
KRR - HESNTEBSRAKEERE
&/Eﬁzﬁkfﬁj\ﬂfﬁ%\%ﬁ%%ﬁ%“%%m 2 12
o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &t Z202143/31H 1F F/Z

14.Investment Properties (continued)

14 REY =X (&

FAIR VALUE ROAEE
At beginning of the year RER 40,321,571 4,369,208 44,690,869 [ETEEyALY! 4769400 49,101,784
Exchange realignment MERE 958,403 173,319 1,131,722 (717,028) (140,303) (857,331)
Additions AE 193,368 339,220 532,588 1,422,338 233,600 1,655,938
Disposals HE - - - (21,000) - (21,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39)  HEMBLA (#/:39) (1,231,000) - (1,231,000) - - -
Transfer from completed investment &2 &M E & NEEHZ

properties to properties under ~ H{EHEZERBNE

development for sale (Note) (Hiz) (976,110) Lrlhls (1,059,000) - (1,059,000)
Transfer from investment properties B%EHRENE

under development to completed EAZEAKEENE

investment properties 401,383 (401,383) - - - -
Transfer to assets classified BEENEARBIELEL

as held for sale (note 27) B (H:27) (508,000) - (508,000) - - -
Net decrease in fair value RERBAZAAER

recognised in profit or loss RO EE (752,144) (458,454)  (1,210,598) IEXXIRVE)] (493,399)  (4,129,522)
At end of the year RER 38,407,471 4,022,000  42,429471 [EETKIINIAI 4369,298 44,690,869

Note: During the year, certain completed investment properties HE: RAFE BETVEFERERZZE

originally held for rental purpose were classified to
properties under development for sale upon commencement
of construction at fair value of HK$976,110,000 (2020:
HK$1,059,000,000) at the date of transfer.

The carrying amount of investment properties
comprises properties situated in:

Hong Kong

The PRC i
Macau P
UK HE

ERREDENREEMBRRE /A
B2 5 {B{E976,110,0007% JT (20204 :
1,059,000,0008 7T ) 7 A AR5 E & 2 %
EEE/E

BREMEZREERRBINATHITHYE

29,265,175
9,431,700
2,636,000
3,357,994

26,780,426
9,664,600
2,556,100
3,428,345

42,429,471 44,690,869

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZEZ

ANNUAL REPORT 202
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14.Investment Properties (continued)

All of the Group’ s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at
the end of each reporting period have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on those dates by
Memfus Wong Surveyors Limited, Colliers International
(Hong Kong) Limited and Cushman & Wakefield Limited,
in accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards
2020 (2020: HKIS Valuation Standards 2017) issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors or International
Valuation Standards 2020 (2020: International Valuation
Standards 2017) issued by the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors. The Valuers are not connected
with the Group.

For completed investment properties, the valuations
have been arrived at with reference to market evidence
of recent transaction prices for similar properties and
rental income using the applicable market yields for
the respective locations and types of properties.

For investment properties under development, the
valuations have been arrived at assuming that the
investment properties will be completed in accordance
with the development proposals and the relevant
approvals for the proposals have been obtained. The
valuations include key factors such as the market value
of the completed investment properties, which are
estimated with reference to recent sales evidence of
similar properties in the nearest locality as available
in the relevant market with adjustments made by the
Valuers to account for differences in the locations and
other factors specifically to determine the potential
sales proceeds, and deducting the development
costs and required profit margin from the investment
properties which are derived from the interpretation of
prevailing investor requirements or expectations at the
valuation dates.

During the year, the net interest capitalised in
investment properties under development amounted to
HK$75,259,000 (2020: HK$87,218,000).

Emperor International Holdings Limited 3EE2£ME () BRAE
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 &%k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021  #{F2021F3431H 1 F/&
14 REYZ (&)

AEEMEREEEHEREERRES
HERIBERER IV ERBENERRAAE
BEEAFELDBRARBREDE-

AEEREVERNEREHRZAAEE
DREEREATARAR 5 B
MEBER (BE)AERABDLREERITAR
REARZEBHRERENEME S HM
Z BB R E A2 g H{E % R12020 (20204 :

FB B EAEER2017) RERE

A2 B 2 & AR 4 2 B BR (4 {842 2482020(2020
F : EER A EEAE2017) BT 2 (AEMEE

it BB B 7R SR [ 4R o

RERRREYMENS  HEDREBEED
RXZOHMS X5 ERMMERANESEZ
NERBAZERMS RS e AR
EO

PERPREVEM S  HEDBRRKED
R REBEFERFECEAMEL  BBRE
DB E- AERRESERREDE
ZMEFETEERER W2RIMNEH
miGRHE T M ERAAL 2 FRBEYEZ T
HISHE RS s 1T IR MLER S BB
ERNEMABRRIFLAR UETEE
HEZRTIA BRRREME 2 ERKX
ARRBERZMBER (WFHFIHRIER
EREENHERAMZ ZERABHMESR
/i) -

RAFE BRPREVENERCNSF
8 /375,259,000/% 7T (20204 : 87,218,000
BIT) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021F3 31 H 1FF/E

14.Investment Properties (continued)

The unrealised loss on property revaluation included
in profit or loss of the year is HK$1,155,473,000 (2020:
HK$4,146,932,000).

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current
use. The fair values of certain investment properties
have been adjusted to exclude prepaid or accrued
operating lease income to avoid double counting.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during

14 REW=E (&)

HARNFEER I MEER2AER
B 18 /51,155,473,0005% T (20204 :
4,146,932,000/8 7T) °

REFMEZARBER DEZES &
ERgRAREZRERGR ETREVEN
NRBEDIEFER  UHREN IR EE
MEWA  AEREERFE -

R EFERN - BEE A S T E3R -

both years.

There has been no change to the valuation technique FR-HERMTEES  TRIEHBH L
during the year. The following table gives information EREMEZ AR BENANEE Z2ER (L
about how the fair values of these investment HEMRABzHERMREZHASE) -
properties are determined (in particular, the valuation UNEBBEAARBEFEZBABE ZATEH
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair EREEARBEAEMBEAZAREBES
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements B (FL1E3R) »

are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to

which the inputs to the fair value measurements are

observable.
Investment properties
held by the Group in the Sensitivity/relationship
consolidated statement Fair value Valuation techniques of unobservable
of financial position Fair value hierarchy and key inputs Significant unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
RESBBRR RS TUBERANBHAAEEL
REEREECRENE MMER MEESR HERFRIZBALE EXTUBRRAUE QRE/ B
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THL
Hong Kong
i

Retail shops/complexes 15,502,280 Level3 Direct comparison method with ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into
market unit rate as the key account the time, location, frontage
input and size, between the comparables,

which ranged from HK$4,400 to
HKS$570,000 (2020: HK$4,100 to

HKS$560,000) per square foot

Asignificant increase in the market unit
rate used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

TEER/B5 F3M HREEE ISENERIES THREUER TELARTLEYER  FRATSELERABENAITREY

IERARE ZEB B BHARA) ENTE  ZZARBEAREN R2H%-
75 R4,4007% 7T £570,0007% 7 (2020
14,1007 7 2560,000/% )

Retail shops/complexes 906,000 Level 3 Direct capitalisation method with  Capitalisation rate, taking into account  The higher the capitalisation rate, the
capitalisation rate as the key the capitalisation of rental income lower the fair value, and vice versa.
input potential, nature of the properties,

prevailing market condition, which
ranged from 3.5% to 4.2% (2020: 3.4%
t0 3.9%) per annum
TEHH/ B £38 EREMUE DERMERRT AXE SHREEERGMAZEAL BRcEds ARABESE R2MA.

B PN ¢ WEZHE RamEhn ENTFEE

3.5%%4.2% (2020 : 3.4%%3.9% )

Emperor International Holdings Limited H2%M (BR)BRAZ 455
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 &%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

14.Investment Properties (continued)

B P202143H31H IFF/Z

14. R EW=E (&)

Retail /commercial 2,587,000
properties under
development

BRTTE/HENE

Offices premises 5,807,070

Industrial premises 2,561,216 2,973,835

I50%

Residential premises 1,029,850 1,648,490

156 Emperor International Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 5§

2,360,000 Level3

F3M

5,874,570 Level3

£360

Level 3

£360

Level 3

Residual method
The key inputs are:

RELIRGAER:

(1) Gross development value  Gross development value on completion
basis, mainly taking into account
the time, location, design, frontage,

layout and size between the

comparables and the properties,
which ranged from HK$39,000 to

HK$80,000 (2020: HK$41,800 to
HK$90,000) per square foot
(1) RELEE

41,800 7 £90,000% 7T)
(2)  Developer's profit
progress of the property

Q) ERBEHN
REMEITRER

Direct comparison method with ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into

account the time, location, quality,

input floor level and size, between the
comparables, which ranged from

market unit rate as the key

HK$7,300 to HK$49,000 (2020:

HKS7,500 to HK$54,000) per square

foot

ERLEA UMISEMERES THEMER TEEHRILRNER
IRGAHE ZEE LE T2 BERAN K
NFETFHRT,300 7T 249,000 7T
(2020 : 7,5007% 7. £54,000% 7T)

Direct comparison method with ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into

account the time, location, quality,

input floor level and size, between the
comparables, which ranged from

market unit rate as the key

HK$3,500 to HK$9,200 (2020:

HK$3,800 to HK$9,300) per square

foot

ERLEA UMSENERES THREMER TEEHRILRNER
ZBE LE EX BERAN AN
TETHR3,500#1LZ29,200/7 (2020

IRGAHE
£:3,8008 7T 29,3003 )

Direct comparison method with ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into
account the time, location, quality,
input view, floor level and size, between

market unit rate as the key

the comparables, which ranged

from HKS5,700 to HK$48,000 (2020:
HKS5,700 to HK$39,600) per square

foot

ERLEA UMSENUERES THREMER TEEFRITLRNER
ELIN ZERLE EX 28 BERAN
ENTFETHR5,7008 T 248,000 T
(2020 : 5,7007% 7. 39,6007 7T)

REERE (EF) BRATE

RERAENHYLER TREHET
LEMFELENERI NG UE
it BER HRRAN ENTET
71R39,0007# 7T £80,0007 7T (20205 :

Developer’s profit at 3% (2020: 10%)
taking into account the construction

BIRME 28T 53% (20205 :10%) - 85

The higher the gross development value,
the higher the fair value, and vice versa.

REREEES ARLBELSS R2HA.

The higher the developer’s profit, the
lower the fair value, and vice versa.

KRBENGR ALAEERE RZFA

Asignificant increase in the market unit
rate used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

FRATE B ERAR NS HREY
RZDABERBEN 2R

Asignificant increase in the market unit
rate used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

FRATE B ERARENE S HREY
RZDABEREEN 2R

Asignificant increase in the market unit
rate used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

FRATE B ERARENE S HREY
RZDABEREEN R2ARe




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &t Z202143/31H 1F F/Z

14.Investment Properties (continued) 14 REWVE (&

The PRC
HE
Retail shops/complexes 107,000 112,800 Level3 Direct comparison method with ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into Asignificant increase in the market unit
market unit rate as the key account the time, location, frontage rate used would result in a significant
input and size, between the comparables, increase in the fair value of the
which ranged from HK$1,700 investment properties, and vice versa.
to HK$3,100 (2020: HK$1,900 to
HKS3,600) per square foot
TEHH/ B £38 ERLEE DTGEUERER THRELER FREGHRALENER FARATSELERABENESIBREY
TERALE ZBEME BEARAN ENTE  XZRABEAEEN R2MHA.
T 7R1,7007% 7T £3,100% 7T (20205 :
1,900/ 7T 23,6007 1T )
Retail/commercial 1,435,000 1,696,000 Level3 Residual method
properties under The key inputs are:
development
BERTE/HENE £3% REEIEBAEAR:
(1) Gross development value  Gross development value on completion  The higher the gross development value,
basis, mainly taking into account the higher the fair value, and vice versa.

the time, location, design, frontage,
layout and size between the
comparables and the properties,
which ranged from HK$3,298
to HK$9,937 (2020: HK$2,745 to
HKS9,761) per square foot

(1) HELEE REREENARAEE TEEHRT  FELEELR MALBEEES R2MA-
HEMEEZSNER RE LB
RirBEE-BERAN ENTET
FR3,298% 29,9374 7T (2020%
27458159, 761 TT)

(2)  Level adjustments Level adjustment on individual floor The higher the upward level adjustment,
of the properties ranged from about the higher the fair value, and vice versa.
50% to 95% (2020: 50% to 95%) on
specific levels

) EBERZE BERENXEREE BEAE NT LAREHRS URABEER R2M%-
B E 2 4150%%95% (20205 : 50%
£95%)

(3)  Developer's profit Developer’s profit at 30% (2020: 30%), ~ The higher the developer’s profit, the
taking into account the construction lower the fair value, and vice versa.
progress of the property

3) BEEEMN BRE2ET5A30% (20209 :30%) & HEBEHNEE ALLEEME R2HA-
STRENECIRER

Emperor International Holdings Limited ZEZ
ANNUAL REPORT 202




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 ~ #tZ202143/31H 1+ F/Z

14. R EW=E (&)

14.Investment Properties (continued)

Retail shops/complexes PR 1,296,000 Level 3 Direct capitalisation method Monthly rent, based on saleable floor ~ The higher the monthly rent, the higher
with market unit rent and area using direct market comparable the fair value, and vice versa.
capitalisation rate as the key and taking into account of time,
input and discounted cash location, frontage and size of
flow analysis with market unit ~ properties, which ranged from HK$59
rent and discount rate as the to HKSTT (2020: HKS56 to HKS72) per
key input square foot

TEEH/BS BRI EREALE DTRENESR BARS RETSERTRENEZT  ABMS HALEESS RZMHA.
EREEAIERABERY EREEE WOHRMEHRE I
RRSREAM UHRENE B BHEARKN ENFEFHRSY
SRMREFRIZRARE %;‘ain%ﬁ(zozo%:se}ﬁ@z%

T

Capitalisation rate, taking into account ~ The higher the capitalisation rate, the
the capitalisation of rental income lower the fair value, and vice versa.
potential, nature of properties,
prevailing market condition, which
was 4.25% (2020: 4.25%) per annum

AR @i RERASRAZER . BEALERES AArBEEE R2HR-
NEZHE RATSHR EASE
4.25% (20205 : 4.25%)

Discount rate, taking into account the  The higher the discount rate, the lower the
net capitalisation rate and stabilised fair value, and vice versa.
annual rental growth rate, which was
6% (2020: 6%)

BRE BHRFANMERRETFRS HREES ARLEELE R4
ERE - EA6% (20205 : 6%)

Office premises RN 6,316,000 Level 3 Direct capitalisation method Monthly rent, based on saleable floor ~ The higher the monthly rent, the higher

with market unit rent and the fair value, and vice versa.
capitalisation rate as input and
discounted cash flow analysis
with market unit rent and

discount rate as the key input

ERAME DMBERAER

area using direct market comparable
and taking into account of time,
location, frontage and size of
properties, prevailing, which ranged
from HK$59 to HKS79 (2020: HK$56 to
HKS75) per square foot

BRAAS RETSERTHENEZT

F3% AfER AR BEES R2HA
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EREERGABBRERE ESREER WEHENELHR O
SREM NMBELAER B BHERAN ANFEFHR
BREERIZGAYE }ﬁﬁﬁw\}%ﬁ (20205 : 56/ L2757

REERE (EF) BRATE

)

Capitalisation rate, taking into account
the capitalisation of rental income
potential, nature of properties,
prevailing market condition, which
was 4.25% (2020: 4.25%) per annum

AR @t RERRSRAZER L
NEIME RAOTSHR EASE
4.25% (2020 : 4.25%)

Discount rate, taking into account the
net capitalisation rate and stabilised
annual rental growth rate, which was
6% (2020: 6%)

BRE BHRFEAREXREEERE
ERE E 6% (20205 :6%)

The higher the capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value, and vice versa.

EREEE URRBELRE R2HA

The higher the discount rate, the lower the

fair value, and vice versa.

EREEE AARBESE R2AA




Residential premises

Macau
s}

Retail shops/complexes

TEER/BS

Residential premises

UK
#E

Retail shops/complexes/
offices/residential
premises

TEHR/ W5/ WA
/EEnE

14.Investment Properties (continued)

11,600

2,517,000

39,100

3,428,345

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B 2202143 H31H IFF/Z

10,900 Level 3 Direct comparison method with ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into
market unit rate as the key account the time, floor, building
input condition and size, between the

comparables, which was HK$8,000

(2020: HKS7,500) per square foot

234 ERLEA UMBENERES THREMER TRESRITLSNER
IRGAHE ZEE BE BFHRARA) AET

78,0007 7T (2020% : 7,500 )

2,595,100 Level3 Direct comparison method with ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into
market unit rate as the key account the time, location, frontage
input and size, between the comparables,

which was ranged from HK$7,000
to HK$174,000 (2020: HK$6,000 to

HKS$172,000) per square foot

F3% ERBWE IMBELERIES THELER IREARALENER
IRGAEE ZERE B BEERAN ENTE

F7R7,0007 7T £174,000% 7€ (2020
16,000 2172,000% )

40,900 Level3 Direct comparison method with ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking into
market unit rate as the key account the time, location, quality,
input view, floor level and size, between the

comparables, which was HK$7,100
(2020: HKS7,400) per square foot

234 ERBSE IMSELERES FHELER TREHRALRNER
IREAHE ZEEUE EX FE BERA)N

2@»)@%9{7,100%7‘5 (2020% : 7,400%
T

3,044,696 Level3 Direct capitalisation method Monthly rent, based on internal floor
with market unit rent and area using direct market comparables
capitalisation rate as the key and taking into account of time,
input location, frontage and size of
properties, which ranged from HK$40
to HKS557 (2020: HKS37 to HKS520)

per square foot

234 ERAMME DMBELEER SARE RETSERITLENEZR
BALRERIZEALE DEEER WEHENE BRI

E BEARK) ANFET R4
gﬁ)ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ (2020% : 313 L E520
B

Capitalisation rate, taking into account
the capitalisation of rental income
potential nature of properties,
prevailing market condition, which
ranged from 2.85% to 4.5% (2020:
2.95% to 4.5%) per annum

BRfek @ REEESRAZER
o WEZRE RimaRkR AT
§F2.85%%F4.5% (2020F : 2.95% %
4.5%)

Emperor International Holdings Limited
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Asignificant increase in the market unit
rate used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

RIS BN ER KBEES BiRE D
RZDABERBEN 2R

Asignificant increase in the market unit
rate used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

FRAmSELERRBRIFSTRED
RZDREERERN R2MRe

Asignificant increase in the market unit
rate used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

FR RIS E N ER KB IHS TR ED
RIRABEREEN R2HR.

Asignificant increase in the market unit
rent used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice versa.

FRAmISELRS KBEIES TR ED
RLRABEREEN RZHR.

The higher the capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value, and vice versa.

ARfEds UARBELE R2TA

+
HE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 ~ #tZ202143/31H 1+ F/Z
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14.Investment Properties (continued)

Residual method

Retail shops/complexes/ 313,298 Level3

offices under The key inputs are:
development
%%*3%%&%/@%/ 3} REZTEHAER:

(1) Gross development value  Gross development value on completion  The higher the gross development value,
basis, mainly taking into account the higher the fair value, and vice versa.
the time, location, design, frontage,
layout and size between the
comparables and properties, which
ranged from HKS64 to HK$520 per
square foot for 2020

EREENFHREEE TEEH R
LENERZENEH I BH B &
i BEE BERAN 200FENT

(1) HEeEE REREEES ARLBELSS R2HA.

BT HR64ETES0ET

(2)  Developer's profit Developer’s profit at 8.5% taking into The higher the devel